

# **BID #596**

Project: Swimming Pool Repair and Deck Resurfacing

Bid Deadline: **8/5/19 @ 10:00 p.m.** 

Submit Bids To: Oxnard Union High School District

Purchasing Department, Building "G"

Attn: Deanna Rantz 309 S. "K" Street Oxnard, CA 93030

# Bid #596

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

TABLE OF CONTENTS	i
BID REQUIREMENTS	
Notice Inviting Bids	
Instructions For Bidders	1
Description of Work	9
Master Schedule	12
Bidder Clarification Request	13
Stage: Start to the quest in the property of t	10
REQUIRED BID FORMS	14
Bid Form	15
Designation of Subcontractor Listing	18
Bid Bond	20
Certification Regarding DVBE Compliance	22
Certification Regarding Iran Contracting Act	24
Non-Collusion Declaration	25
Certification Regarding Site Visit	26
References	27
Certification of Contractor and Subcontractor	28
REQUIRED CONTRACT FORMS	30
Agreement for Public Works Project	RCF-1
Certification Regarding Employee Background Checks	RCF-5
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace	RCF-7
Certification Regarding Tobacco-Free Workplace	RCF-8
Certification Regarding Workers Compensation	RCF-9
Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials	RCF-10
Certification Regarding Non-Asbestos-Containing Materials	RCF-10
Payment Bond	RCF-12
Performance Bond	RCF-16
Certification Regarding DVBE Participation	RCF-10
Certification Regarding Prevailing Wage	RCF-20
Certification negarining rievalling wage	NCF-ZZ
PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT	
Special Provisions	P-1
General Provisions	P-4

#### **NOTICE INVITING BIDS**

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Oxnard Union High School District ("District") is seeking sealed bids from qualified contractors for construction of the following public-works project ("Project"): #596 Swimming Pool Repair and Deck Resurfacing

**PLACE FOR SUBMITTING BIDS:** Bids must be submitted to the District at the following location ("Place for Submitting Bids"):

Oxnard Union High School District Purchasing Department, Building "G" Attn: Deanna Rantz, Director or Purchasing 309 S. K Street, Oxnard, CA 93030

**BID DEADLINE:** Bids must be received at the Place for Submitting Bids not later than **10:00 a.m**. on **August 5, 2019** ("Bid Deadline"). Bids will be read aloud at this time.

**BID DOCUMENTS:** Contractors may obtain the documents necessary to submit a Bid ("Bid Documents") from the OUHSD website: <a href="http://www.ouhsd.k12.ca.us/divisions/administrative-services/purchasing-warehousing/">http://www.ouhsd.k12.ca.us/divisions/administrative-services/purchasing-warehousing/</a>

**REQUIRED BID BOND:** Each Bid must be submitted with a Bid Bond, Cashier's or Certified Check, or Cash as described in the Instructions for Bidders, in the amount of 10% of the total bid amount.

**CONTRACTOR LICENSE:** The class or classes of California contractor licenses required to propose on and perform the Work are: **A – General Engineering** and/or **C53 – Swimming Pool** License(s).

**PRE-BID CONFERENCE and SITE WALK:** The District will conduct a mandatory pre-bid conference and site visit at **9:00 a.m. on July 24, 2019.** The conference will commence at **Oxnard High School, 3400 West Gonzales Road, Oxnard CA 93030 at pool location.** Attendance at the pre-bid conference and site visit is mandatory, and any Bidder that does not attend shall be deemed non-responsive.

**BONDS:** As described in the General Provisions, upon award, the successful Bidder must provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in an amount equal to 100% of the total Contract Price, and each issued by a California-admitted surety as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120.

**LABOR LAW:** The Project is a "public work" project that is subject to, among other laws, to Labor Code Sections 1720 through 1861, inclusive. As described in the Instructions For Bidders, each contractor (including subcontractors) must be registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations ("DIR") in accordance with Labor Code Section 1725.5, and Bidders must provide evidence of registration for themselves and their subcontractors. Each worker on the Project must be paid not less than the applicable prevailing rates of per-diem wages in the locality in which the Work is to be performed for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the Contract ("Prevailing Wages").

Notice Inviting Bids Date: 7/14/19 & 7/21/19

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR BIDDERS

Caution: Read these Instructions For Bidders and other RFP Documents carefully. Do not assume that the documents are the same as similar documents you previously may have obtained from the District. Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in these Instructions For Bidders shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in other of the Bid Documents.

- 1. Architect/Consultant. The Architect/Consultant, if any, for the Project ("Architect/Consultant") is identified in the Special Provisions. The Architect/Consultant may have prepared and/or approved graphic and pictorial illustrations in connection with the Project that show the design, location, and scope of certain portions of the Work and the Project, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams ("Drawings"). The Architect/Consultant also may have prepared and/or approved written requirements for materials, equipment, construction systems, quality, workmanship, services and other things to be furnished in connection with the Work and the Project ("Specifications"). If there is no Architect/Consultant for the Project, the District may delegate to its staff any or all of the responsibilities specified in the Bid Documents as being the responsibility of the Architect/Consultant.
- 2. Project Manager. Notwithstanding that the District may intend to complete the Project using a single general contractor, the District may provide a District Project Manager or other consultant in connection with the Project ("Project Manager"). If the District has contracted or employed a Project Manager prior to issuance of the Bid Documents, the Project Manager is identified in the Special Provisions, or may be added at any time. The Project Manager will be the District's representative during the construction and close-out of the Work and will assist the District in the administration of the Contract.
- at the pre-Bid conference and site visit (regardless of whether conference/site visit is mandatory or optional) must be dressed appropriately and with safety in mind, including, at a minimum, by wearing: (i) closed-toe, closed-heel, and regular-heel shoes (such as tennis shoes or work boots); (ii) long pants; and (iii) a shirt with sleeves. Shorts, dresses, sleeveless shirts, and open shoes will not be permitted on the Project Site. Regardless of whether the pre-Bid conference initially commences at the District's main offices or at the Project Site, prospective Bidders must not enter the Project Site unless and until a District representative is present and directs them to do so. Prospective Bidders are responsible for their own transportation. NO CONFERENCES OR SITE VISITS WILL BE ARRANGED FOR BIDDERS THAT FAIL TO ATTEND THE SCHEDULED CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT. PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS MUST NOT VISIT THE PROJECT SITE AT ANY TIME OTHER THAN THE DATE AND TIME FOR THE PRE-BID CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT SET FORTH IN THE NOTICE INVITING BIDS.
- **4. Examination of Project Site and Contract Documents.** During the pre-Bid conference and site visit (regardless of whether conference/site visit is mandatory or optional), each Bidder must inspect the Project Site and become fully acquainted with the conditions in and under which the Work will be performed, so that the Bidder fully understands the facilities, difficulties, restrictions and requirements attendant to the performance of the Work on and at the Project Site. If so provided in the Special Provisions, each Bidder must complete, execute and submit to the District the "Certification"

Regarding Site Visit" form included in the Bid Documents. In addition, each Bidder must thoroughly examine and develop an understanding of all of the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the Drawings, Specifications, Agreement for Construction Services, General Provisions, Special Provisions, and required forms. Note that capitalized terms used, but not defined, in any of the Bid Documents or Contract Documents shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in other of the Bid Documents or Contract Documents. The failure of a Bidder to understand the conditions in and under which the Work is to be performed, or to examine and understand any of the Contract Documents, shall not relieve the Bidder from any obligations pursuant to its Bid or the Contract Documents.

- 5. Project is a Public Work. Except as otherwise provided or permitted by law, the Project is a "public work" and "public project" within the meaning of various provisions of the Public Contract Code, Labor Code, Civil Code, and other applicable legal requirements. Therefore, the performance of the Work is subject to such requirements. The Contract Documents include various provisions relating to public works and public projects as provided by law, and each Bidder must thoroughly review and become familiar with the Contract Documents as described above in these Instructions For Bidders. However, the Contract Documents do not include comprehensive statements of all requirements of law applicable to public works and public projects, and each Bidder shall be deemed and construed to have acknowledged that fact by submitting a Bid for the Work. In addition, by submitting a Bid for the Work, each Bidder shall be deemed and construed to represent and warrant that it is familiar and knowledgeable with respect to all requirements of law applicable to public works and public projects generally and to the Work specifically.
- 6. Requests for Clarification of Bid Documents. If a prospective Bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the Contract Documents, or finds any conflict, omission or other discrepancy in any Drawings, Specifications or other Contract Documents, the Bidder must submit a written request, using the "Bidder Clarification Request" form included in the Bid Documents, for an interpretation or correction of the applicable Contract Documents. Bidder Clarification Requests must be submitted to the District not later than the "Bidder Clarification Request Deadline" specified in the Master Schedule. The District will attempt to, but does not guarantee that it will, respond to each Bidder Clarification Request Form that is submitted by the Bidder Request Clarification Deadline. A response to a Bidder Clarification Request Form may be in the form of a clarification indicated on the applicable Bidder Clarification Request form or an addendum to the Contract Documents, but each response will in any case be provided to all prospective Bidders known to have obtained a copy of the Bid Documents from the District.
- 7. Modification of Bid Documents. Prior to the opening of Bids, the Architect/Consultant or District Representative will issue interpretations or corrections of the Bid Documents only by addendum or addenda to the Contract Documents. A copy of each addendum will be mailed or otherwise delivered to each prospective Bidder that has obtained a copy of the Bid Documents by paying a deposit. Other prospective Bidders shall be responsible for checking the District's website to determine whether any such addenda have been issued. Any Bidder that fails to acknowledge receipt of each and all addenda in its Bid form may be deemed non-responsive.
- **8. Listing of Subcontractors.** In accordance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Public Contract Code Section 4100 *et seq.*), each Bidder must submit with its Bid the names and locations of the places of business of each subcontractor that will perform any portion of the Work, or that, under subcontract to the Bidder, will specially fabricate and install a portion of the Work,

in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the total amount of the Respondent's Bid. A Bidder may not list more than one subcontractor for any one portion of the Work. A Bidder that fails to list a subcontractor for any portion of the Work represents that it is fully qualified to, and agrees that it shall, perform such Work using its own forces. If the Bid Documents require the Bidder to submit alternate Bids and the Bidder intends to use different or additional subcontractors for the alternates, the Bidder must submit a separate list of subcontractors for each such alternate. The lists of subcontractors must be set forth on the "Subcontractor Listing" form that is included in the Required Bid Forms.

- 9. DVBE Requirements. BIDDERS MUST COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS SECTION ONLY IF THE SPECIAL PROVISIONS SO PROVIDE. The District has adopted a goal for DVBE participation in the Project of three percent of the overall amount expended for certain new-construction and modernization projects each year. Each Bidder must make and document its reasonable efforts to obtain DVBE participation in connection with the Work. In order to be considered reasonable efforts, a Bidder's efforts should include advertising in appropriate publications and contacting any responding DVBE. Alternatively, if so provided in the Special Provisions, the District will advertise for DVBE contractors for the Work, and Bidders must contact the District to obtain information regarding any responding DVBE contractors. The Bidder also should contact any DVBE contractors that it knows and that could perform a portion of the Work or otherwise participate in the Contract. Each Bidder must complete, execute and submit with its Bid the "Certification Regarding DVBE Compliance" form included in the Required Bid Forms, and the District may reject as non-responsive any Bid that does not comply with such requirement.
- 10. Bidder Investments in Iran. Subject to certain exceptions, the Iran Contracting Act of 2010 (Public Contract Code Section 2200 et seq.) prohibits a party that engages in investment activities in Iran, as described in Public Contract Code Section 2202.5, from entering into any contract of \$1,000,000 or more for goods or services to be provided to a public entity. Each Bidder must complete, execute and deliver to the District, with its Bid, the "Certification Regarding Iran Contracting Act" form included in the Required Bid Forms.

#### 11. Substitution of Specified Items.

11.1 Requests for Substitution. Except as may be provided in the Special Provisions with respect to Sole Source Items, the requirement for any material, equipment, process, item or other thing specified in the Bid Documents (each a "Specified Item") shall be interpreted as if followed by the words "or equal," and a Bidder may offer in place of a Specified Item any material, product, service, or other thing that the Bidder can demonstrate is, in every respect, materially equal to or better than the Specified Item and that will completely accomplish the intended aesthetics, purposes and/or functions of the Specified Item. Each substitution request is subject to and must conform with the requirements of the General Provisions, including, without limitation, requirements for submitting documentation in support of the request.

11.2 Timing for Submission of Requests for Substitution. A SUBSTITUTION REQUEST MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE DISTRICT NOT LATER THAN SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE BID DEADLINE SPECIFIED IN THE NOTICE INVITING BIDS. The District will not consider any substitution request received thereafter, except to the extent provided in the General Provisions. Concurrently with submitting a substitution request, the Bidder must provide all information required pursuant to the General Provisions to substantiate the request.

- 11.3 Approval of Requests for Substitution. The Bidder shall be responsible for establishing that a proposed substitution of a Specified Item satisfies all requirements of the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, that the proposed substitute item is, in every respect, materially equal to or better than the Specified Item. The District may at any time request that a Bidder provide any additional information regarding a substitute item that the Bidder has proposed. The District, in consultation with the Architect/Consultant/Consultant, will decide whether to approve a substitution based on the information provided by the Bidder and, in the District's sole discretion, on information obtained by the District from other sources. The District has the sole discretion to determine whether a proposed substitute item is equal to or better than a Specified Item. Any request for substitution that is granted by the District shall be documented and processed by means of a Change Order after execution of the Contract. The District may condition its approval of any substitution upon delivery to the District of an extended warranty or other assurances of adequate performance of the substitute item. The District shall not be required to make a determination in regard to any substitution request and/or substantiating information prior to award of the Contract. If the District gives a Notice of Award to the successful Bidder for the Contract, but subsequently disapproves a substitution proposed by the Bidder, the Bidder must provide the Specified Item in accordance with the Contract Documents and at no additional cost to the District.
- **11.4** Costs and Delays Arising from Substitution. The successful Bidder for the Contract, if it has requested any substitutions of Specified Items, shall be responsible for and shall bear any and all risks, expenses and costs of delay arising from required review or approval of the substitutions by the California Department of General Services, Division of State Architect/Consultant ("DSA") and/or other governmental District with competent jurisdiction.
- 12. Use of Bid Form is Mandatory. Each Bid must be submitted on the Bid form included in the Required Bid Forms. Unless expressly permitted by the Bid Documents, a Bidder must not: (i) make any changes, additions or other modifications to the Bid form or other documents to be submitted with the Bid form; (ii) restate or recharacterize the Work in the Bid; or (iii) make any alternative Bids not permitted by the Bid Documents. The District may reject as non-responsive any Bid that does not strictly comply with the foregoing.
- 13. Preparing the Bid. Bidders must fully and properly complete all information required to be included on the Bid form. A Bid may contain an erasure, interlineation, or other correction only if the correction is made to the information entered by the Bidder (not to the pre-printed text of the Bid form), does not result in any inconsistency or ambiguity, and is authenticated by affixing, in the margin immediately adjacent to the correction, the initials of the person or persons signing the Bid. In the event of inconsistency between words and numbers, words shall govern over numbers and, for purposes of the Bid, the District may rely on the words.
- 14. Bid Security. Each Bid must be submitted with security in an amount equal to 10% of the Respondent's Total Bid Amount. For purposes of the Bid Documents, "Total Bid Amount" shall mean the total of a Bidder's base Bid plus all additive alternates. In the event a Respondent's Bid security does not equal at least ten percent of the Total Bid Amount, the District may reject that Bid as non-responsive. The Bid security must be in one of the following forms: (i) a cashier's or certified check payable to the District; or (ii) a bid bond. Personal and business checks are not acceptable as Bid security. Bid security in the form of a Bid Security must be an executed copy of the "Bid Bond" form included as one of the Required Bid Forms (without any interlineations or other modifications) and must

be issued by a California-admitted surety as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120. Unless forfeited, the District will return security to the Bidders within a reasonable time, but not later than sixty days after award of the Contract for the Work.

- **15. Non-Collusion Declaration.** Each Bidder must complete, execute and submit to the District, with its Bid, a copy of the Non-Collusion Declaration form included in the Required Bid Forms.
- 16. Signing the Bid and Other Required Documents. The Bid Form and other Required Bid Forms, the Bid Security, and all other documents to be submitted with the Bid that require an original signature of the Bidder must be signed in permanent ink, preferably blue in color, by a person or persons duly authorized to sign documents and contractually bind the Bidder in connection with the Work. The District may reject as non-responsive any Bid form containing a stamped or mechanically-printed signature.
- 17. Sealing and Labeling the Bid. The completed Bid form, other Required Bid Forms, and all additional documents and other materials to be submitted with the Bid must be enclosed in a sealed envelope. No information must be apparent on the outside of the Bid envelope other than the name/number of the Project, the Bid Deadline and the company name and address of the Bidder, and the District may reject any Bid if the outside of the Bid envelope has additional information or identifying marks.
- 18. Extensions to Bid Deadline. For purposes of the Notice Inviting Bids and these Instructions For Bidders, any reference to the "Bid Deadline" shall mean the date and time specified as the Bid Deadline in the Notice Inviting Bids and any authorized extension(s) thereto. The Bid Deadline shall be extended by no less than seventy-two hours if the District issues any material changes, additions, or deletions to the Bid Documents within seventy-two hours of the Bid Deadline.
- Deadline and at the Place for Submitting Bids described in the Notice Inviting Bids. The clock, computer or other device located at the Place for Submitting Bids and designated as the official Bid clock shall be used in determining whether Bids have been timely received by the District, regardless of whether the time shown on the official Bid clock is precisely accurate. Each Bidder is solely responsible for ensuring that its Bid is timely received by the District. A Bidder must submit its Bid to the District via personal or other delivery. The District will not accept any oral Bid or Bid sent via facsimile or electronic transmission. At no time will District telephones or facsimile machines be available for use by Bidders. Each Bid received by the District after the Bid Deadline will be returned to the Bidder unopened.
- **20. Modifying or Superseding a Bid.** Not later than the Bid Deadline, a Bidder may modify or supersede its original Bid by withdrawing its original Bid as provided in these Instructions For Bidders and concurrently submitting a replacement Bid for the Work in accordance with the Bid Documents. The District shall reject any replacement Bid that is not received by the District prior to the Bid Deadline. The late receipt and rejection of a Bidder's replacement Bid shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a withdrawal of the original Bid by the Bidder, and the District still may accept the original Bid if responsive and the Bidder is a responsible contractor. Each replacement Bid received by the District after the Bid Deadline will be returned to the Bidder unopened.

- 21. Withdrawing a Bid. A Bidder may withdraw its Bid at any time prior to the Bid Deadline by submitting a written request to the District via personal or other delivery. The District will not accept any oral withdrawal request or any withdrawal request sent via facsimile or electronic transmission. A withdrawal request must be signed by an authorized representative of the Contractor. A withdrawal request received by the District after the Bid Deadline shall in no event be deemed or construed to constitute a withdrawal of the Bid, and the District still may accept the Bid if it is responsive and the Bidder is a responsible contractor. After receipt of a timely withdrawal request, the District shall return the Bidder's Bid Security upon request. Except as provided in Public Contract Code Section 5100 et seq., if a Bidder has not withdrawn its Bid prior to the Bid Deadline, the Bidder thereafter may not withdraw its Bid for a period of sixty days after the Bid Deadline.
- **22. Bid Irregularities.** The District, in accordance with applicable law, may waive any minor irregularity or informality in any Bid or in the Bid process. The District may, but is not required to, seek information from any Bidder that might resolve an ambiguity in the Respondent's Bid.
- 23. Bid Protests. Any Bidder that has duly submitted a Bid for the Work may protest the process used to seek Bids for the Work, another Bid for the Work and/or the intended award of the Contract for the Work only by filing a written protest with the District in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section (each a "Bid Protest"). The District will not accept or consider any oral Bid Protest (e.g., by telephone) or any Bid Protest sent via electronic transmission (e.g., e-mail). In order for a Bid Protest to be valid and be considered by the District, the Bid Protest:
- (i) Must be received by the District not later than 4:00 p.m. on the third business day following the opening of Bids;
- (ii) Must clearly identify the Bidder that is filing the Bid Protest, together with the name, address and telephone number of the person representing the Bidder for purposes of the Bid Protest;
- (iii) Must clearly identify the specific Bid, Bid process, or other matter that is the subject of the Bid Protest;
- (iv) Must clearly identify the specific provisions of all documents relevant to the Bid Protest;
- (v) Must clearly identify and describe in detail the specific basis or bases for the Bid Protest and all facts relevant thereto;
- (vi) Must clearly identify and describe in detail all arguments by the protesting Bidder in support of the Bid Protest, including, without limitation, citations to applicable statutory requirements; and
- (vii) Must be submitted with all documentation the protesting Bidder desires to submit that is relevant to and supports the basis or bases underlying the Bid Protest.

If a Bid Protest does not comply with each and all of the foregoing requirements (provided that a protesting Bidder will be deemed to have submitted all documentation that it desires in accordance with clause (vii) of the foregoing), the District will reject the Bid Protest as invalid. However, upon receipt of a valid Bid Protest, the District and/or its legal counsel will review the Bid Protest and provide a written response to the protesting Bidder setting forth a recommendation for action by the

School Board of the District ("District Board") in response to the Bid Protest. Action on a Bid Protest by the District Board shall be a condition precedent to the filing of any claim or demand and to the initiation of any action (legal or equitable) or other proceeding arising from the matter(s) protested.

CAUTION: COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOREGOING BID PROTEST REQUIREMENTS IS MANDATORY. EACH BIDDER THAT DESIRES TO PROTEST MUST FILE ITS OWN BID PROTEST IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOREGOING REQUIREMENTS, AND NO BIDDER MAY RELY ON A BID PROTEST BY ANOTHER BIDDER AS A MEANS OF SATISFYING SUCH REQUIREMENTS. COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOREGOING REQUIREMENTS IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE MEANS OF PROTESTING A BID, THE BID PROCESS AND/OR THE INTENDED AWARD OF THE CONTRACT, AND FAILURE TO SO COMPLY SHALL BE DEEMED AND CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF ANY AND ALL RIGHTS THE BIDDER MAY HAVE TO PURSUE A CLAIM, DEMAND, OR ACTION ARISING FROM ANY SUCH MATTER.

- **24. District Award Criteria and Award of Contract.** If the District Board awards the Contract, the award will be to the *lowest responsible bidder*. If two or more responsive and responsible Bidders have the same price, the District shall determine the Successful Bidder by means of a coin toss or some other random method. The District will issue notice of the award of the Contract to the Successful Bidder ("Notice of Award").
- 25. Bidder Execution of Contract. The Successful Bidder shall have 10 calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award to execute the Contract and deliver it to the District with all other documents required in accordance with the Contract Documents. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and provide all such documents within that seven-day period: (i) the Successful Bidder shall forfeit the Bid Security submitted with its Bid; and (ii) the District may award the Contract to one of the other responsible and responsive Bidders or release all Bidders.
- **26.** Time for Completion of Work and Liquidated Damages. The Successful Bidder must complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and within the time period specified in the Master Schedule, as such time period may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract Documents. The failure of the Successful Bidder to fully complete the Work within such time period(s) may result in the District assessing Liquidated Damages as provided in the General Provisions.
- **27. Subcontractor Eligibility and Licensing.** The Successful Bidder shall in no event permit a subcontractor to perform any of the Work if that subcontractor is ineligible to work on a public work or public project. Each subcontractor that the Successful Bidder intends shall perform any portion of the Work must be licensed in accordance with law by the Contractors State License Board prior to commencing its portion of the Work.
- **28. Prevailing Wages and Labor-Law Compliance Monitoring.** The Successful Bidder and each of its subcontractors of any tier shall pay not less than the applicable Prevailing Wages for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the Contract.

  The Work will be subject to monitoring by the DIR as to compliance with labor-law requirements, as
- **29.** Fingerprinting and Employee Background Checks. If so specified in the Special Provisions, the Contractor, prior to entering in or upon the Project Site for purposes of commencing the Work, must comply with the requirements for employee background checks set forth in Section 3.7 of

described in more detail in the General Provisions.

the General Provisions. The District reserves the right to subsequently alter such determination in appropriate circumstances, including, without limitation, in any case that the time for performance of the Work has been or will be extended beyond the time specified in the Master Schedule. The District may impose other requirements designed to protect students regardless of whether it requires such employee background checks. The Successful Bidder shall be responsible for compliance with any and all such requirements with respect to its own employees and the employees of its subcontractors.

**30. Discrimination Prohibited.** In connection with performance of the Work, neither the Successful Bidder nor any of its subcontractors of any tier shall illegally discriminate against any prospective or existing employee in violation of applicable law. The Successful Bidder must comply with applicable federal and California laws prohibiting such discrimination and must require like compliance by any subcontractors performing any of the Work.

#### **DESCRIPTION OF WORK**

A. The Work consists of any and all labor, materials, goods, supplies, equipment, tools, utilities, temporary facilities, transportation, delivery services, and other services and things of any nature whatsoever as are expressly and impliedly necessary to timely and satisfactorily complete the Project: (i) in strict accordance with the Contract Documents; and (ii) not later than the Required Completion Date specified in the Master Schedule. The Work consists generally of the following: Swimming Pool Repairs and Deck Resurfacing

#### **B.** THE PROJECT SITE:

Oxnard High School, 3400 West Gonzales Road, Oxnard CA 93030

#### C. PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS & DRAWINGS

See Exhibits A and B – Exhibit A Technical Specification and Exhibit B Drawings

#### D. CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS - WORK PHASE

- i. The Contractor shall conduct all work Monday through Friday between 6:30AM through 3:30PM in all areas (Dayshift), and 3:30PM through 12:00PM (Nightshift) unless approved in advance with the District and with proper site coordination. Preferred daytime working hours are 6:30AM through 3:30PM Monday through Friday, except holidays. All working days must follow the OUHSD classified employee calendar for the 2018-2019 school year. Advanced approval and coordination are required by the OUHSD Project Manager/MOT Director for weekend and holiday work schedules. Contractor is responsible for payment of all fees and wages associated with Classified Employees working hours relative to any project work on weekends, holidays and emergency callouts without advanced approval and coordination by Project Manager and/or MOT Director. Rates will be billed against the contract price as an owner generated deductive change order, according to the Classified Employee pay rate schedule.
- ii. The Contractor shall comply with safety requirements and practices as outlined in the Agreement, and in accordance with District requirements and California Occupational Health and Safety Administration (Cal/OSHA). Prior to the start of any project work, the Contractor is required to submit the *Contractor Safety Form*, supplied as *Appendix D*.
- iii. The Contractor shall do all that is necessary to maintain a safe working environment for Contractor's employees, District and facility employees and the general public present.
- iv. The Contractor shall work with the District facility staff to understand and abide by any site-specific security procedures.
- v. The Contractor shall clean up any construction dust, dirt and debris from work surfaces or equipment after work is completed each day and prior to occupancy.
- vi. The Contractor shall repair or replace any damage to the facility's structure, contents, and existing finishes, with no evidence of cutting or patching, and with all fixtures and lenses cleaned, at Contractor's expense.
- vii. The Contractor shall be responsible for securing all necessary permits and shall abide by local laws and regulations.
- viii. All work shall be warranted against defects in material and workmanship for a period of no less than one year from the date of acceptance.
- ix. All work shall be performed in accordance with all Federal, State, and local building codes.

- x. Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate of wages in accordance with the Labor Code and the State of California prevailing wage laws.
- xi. If Contractor proposes to substitute a piece of equipment *during the construction phase*, Contractor shall use the form provided in *Appendix A*.
- xii. Contractor shall provide an overall schedule on a weekly basis providing a minimum 1 week look-ahead and identifying work areas for each day and/or night. Schedule format is attached as *Appendix C*, Schedule of Values.
- xiii. Contractor shall maintain a written daily progress report log. A sample form is provided as *Appendix B*.
- xiv. At the end of each work day, Contractor shall email the daily progress report log for that shift to the District Construction Manager (Manager) and/or MOT Director to facilitate next-day verification/inspection; communication shall also include problems (e.g. access issues) and details for the next day's work schedule.
- xv. Contractor will submit and maintain a tracking record of all requests for information using District supplied RFI form.
- xvi. Contractor must submit all requests for project cost changes using District form **Appendix E**, Request for Change Order.
- xvii. Contractor must include a schedule of values with each application for payment
- xviii. All contractor site employees, including subcontractors, must complete a contractor safety form (one for per person), *Appendix D*.
- xix. Contractor shall attend meetings complete with preparation and follow up in the following areas:
  - a. Construction kick-off meeting resolve any remaining pre-construction issues, discuss safety concerns, and confirm that all actions needed to be done prior to construction have occurred (e.g. submittals have been approved, permits have been issued, staging area has been secured).
  - Submittal review meetings as needed for discussion of major submittalrelated issues that cannot be resolved through the submittal transmittal process.
  - c. Regular construction meetings, as needed to discuss the progress of the construction, and safety issues with upcoming work.
  - d. Final job-walk Contractor shall schedule this meeting with the District representative plus facility personnel shall attend.
  - e. Contractor shall review meeting minutes circulated after each meeting and resolve all action items assigned to the Contractor by the due date indicated in the minutes.
- xx. Contractor shall coordinate logistics with the District Construction Manager (CM) and/or MOT Director to ensure safe and timely execution of the work. At a minimum the Contractor shall perform the following activities:
  - a. District representative shall provide a site-specific safety briefing to Contractor upon approval of the construction schedule. Contractor shall submit a Safety Plan, per Cal OSHA standards, as required in the contract to the District.
  - b. Contractor shall work with the District and facility personnel to understand and abide by security procedures, as applicable.
  - c. The District shall assist to coordinate parking for the Contractor's vehicles also referred to as the staging area. The parking strategy will be finalized in the preconstruction logistics meeting.

- d. The District shall designate an area of the facility for equipment storage and staging. The storage and staging area will be finalized in the pre-construction meeting.
- e. Contractor shall coordinate with the District prior to moving the Contractor's plant, equipment, tools and materials onto the construction site at the start of the project.
- f. Contractor shall be responsible for the security of the Contractor's property, equipment, construction materials and all other items contained in the Contractor's staging area or elsewhere on the construction site.
- g. Contractor shall meet or speak on the phone with the District CM and/or MOT Director at the start of each shift. The District will provide access to scheduled locations.
- h. Contractor shall notify District one week prior to any scheduled shutdowns of electrical systems, equipment or utilities. The District shall be responsible for notifying tenants of the scheduled shutdowns.
- i. All equipment and materials demolished under the terms of this project are to become the property of the Contractor and to be removed from the site and properly disposed. Recyclable, non-hazardous material shall be recycled. The District may require proof of proper destruction of any recyclable materials.
- j. Contractor will notify the Construction Manager and/or MOT Director prior to moving the Contractor's equipment, tools, and materials onto the construction site at the start of the project.
- k. Contractor will check in at site predetermined location at the start of each shift.
- I. Work areas shall be cleaned up daily prior to leaving the site for the day. District to specify special conditions.

#### **MASTER SCHEDULE**

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District

**Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing** 

Bid Package No.: 596

Some or all of the dates and times set forth in this Master Schedule are anticipated dates and times as of the date the District issued the Notice Inviting Bids for the Project and are subject to change prior to award of the Contract. The Contractor must coordinate the schedule for completion of the Work with the District to ensure that the Work will not unreasonably interfere with District operations, and, to that end, the District may require that Contractor perform the Work during non-school hours, on weekends and/or during school holidays and other breaks; provided that the District and the Contractor shall endeavor to schedule reasonable blocks of time for performance of the Work as will be cost-efficient for the Contractor.

	<u>DATE</u>	<u>TIME</u>
Advertisements	7/14/19 & 7/21/19	N/A
Mandatory Site Visit/Conference	7/24/19	9:00 а.т. (онѕ)
Bidder Clarification Request Deadline	7/30/19	10:00 a.m.
Deadline for Final Addendum	8/2/19	10:00 a.m.
Bids Due	8/5/19	10:00 a.m.
Notice of Intent	8/7/19	N/A
Board Award	8/14/19	N/A
Notice to Proceed & Preliminary Schedule Due	8/15/19	N/A
Preconstruction Meeting & Final Schedule Due	8/20/19	TBD
*Work to Commence	8/26/19	N/A
Work Completion	10/11/19	N/A

<sup>\*</sup>Work may commence only when the executed contract, forms and bonds are received by the District (within 10 business days of Notice to Proceed).

#### **BIDDER CLARIFICATION REQUEST**

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District **Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing** Bid Package No.: 596 Bidder Submitting Request: Identify issue (including, as applicable, drawing/specification number): \_\_\_\_\_\_ Clarification requested: Print Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_ (Note: Architect/Consultant and/or District to complete the portion of this form below.) Date Request Received: Response No. Response to request for clarification: Clarification issued by: <u>Architect/Consultant</u>: District: Name Name Signature Signature Date Date BAW&G/BWS/190812

# **REQUIRED BID FORMS**

The District shall deem to be non-responsive each Bidder that fails to complete, duly execute and submit the following forms with its Bid:

- 1. Bid Form
- 2. Designation of Subcontractor Listing
- 3. Bid Bond
- 4. Certification Regarding DVBE Compliance
- 5. Certification Regarding Iran Contracting Act
- 6. Non-Collusion Declaration
- 7. Certification Regarding Site Visit
- 8. Certification of Contractor and Subcontractor
- 9. References
- 10. Project Schedule of Values (Appendix C)

# **BID FORM**

(Do not leave any information blank)

Proj Bid I	ect: Packa	Swimmi age No.:	•		ol District & Deck Resurfacin	g				
		_			o the District, sub ne following is tru	•	•	or perjury pu	ursua	nt to the laws of
A.	rev	iewed t	he information	on se	horized represent t forth in this Bid l pehalf of the Bidde	Form an		-		apacity, has I has executed and
В.	Cal sub allo	ifornia ( omitted ow the B	"CSLB"), sucl this Bid to th Bidder to per	h lice e Dis form		ıll force sificatio accorda	and effe n(s) of su ance with	ct as of the ch license(s California l	date s) is (a	
							:	License #: _		<i>;</i>
C.	Vis cer her suf	it submi tified in eby rep ficient fi	itted concurr the Acknow resents and	ently ledge warra other	herewith, has been the contract ants that it is suffice resources, to per	come fa Docum ciently e	miliar wi ents subr experienc	th the Contonitted concond ted and qua	ract D urren lified	itly herewith, and , and that it has
D.	if a ma cor	warded terials, t npletior	the Contract tools, equipn n of the Proje	t, the nent, ect in	d and qualified to Bidder shall) furn facilities, transpo strict conformity , all-inclusive amo	ish at its rtation, with the	s own cos services e Bid Doc	st and exper and other t	nse a hings	required for
	BA	SE BID:								
							l	Dollars (\$		).
E.	The Bidder acknowledges that it received, and that it fully considered when preparing this Bid and determining the Bid amount(s) proposed by the Contractor herein ("Bid Amounts"), each of the following Addenda to the Bid Documents (check all that apply):									
			dum No. 1 dum No. 5		Addendum No. 2 Addendum No. 6			um No. 3 um No. 7		Addendum No. 4 Addendum No. 8
BAW8	G/BW	S/190812								

- F. The Bidder acknowledges that the Bid Amounts shall constitute all-inclusive compensation in exchange for full and satisfactory completion of all of the Work, including, without limitation, compensation for any and all sales taxes, supervision, general conditions, fees, field-office and home-office overhead, and profit.
- G. The Bidder represents and warrants that it was responsible for preparing this Bid and that it has carefully checked and confirmed the Bid Amounts and all other information set forth in this Bid Form. The Bidder acknowledges and agrees that the District may rely on such information and in no event shall the District Board or the District be responsible for any errors or omissions in this Bid. The Bidder is aware and acknowledges that the District Board has the right to waive any minor irregularity in this Bid, any other Bid, or all Bids for the Project.
- H. The Bidder has completed as applicable, executed, and submitted with this Bid Form all of the other Required Bid Documents. The Bidder acknowledges that the District shall deem this Bid to be non-responsive if the Bidder fails to complete as applicable, execute, and submit any such other forms to the District concurrently with this Bid Form.
- If awarded the Contract, the Bidder shall execute the Contract by causing its duly-authorized representative to sign the Agreement for Construction Services, and thereby bind the Bidder to the Contract. The Bidder acknowledges that its Bid security submitted concurrently herewith was given to guarantee that, if awarded the Contract, then, within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the Notice of Award, the Bidder shall complete as applicable, execute, and submit to the District: (i) the Construction Services Agreement, Payment Bond, Performance Bond, and all other Required Contract Forms; and (ii) all Certificates of Insurance and endorsements required by the Contract Documents. The Bidder further acknowledges that it shall forfeit up to the whole amount of its Bid security in the event Bidder fails to timely complete as applicable, execute, and submit any such documents to the District.
- J. The Bidder is, and if awarded the Contract, then at all times during the performance of Work must be, in full compliance with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 ("IRCA") relating to its employees, and the Bidder shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the District against any and all claims, actions, other proceedings, penalties, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees), and other liabilities of any nature whatsoever that arise out of the Bidder's failure to strictly comply with the IRCA.
- K. The contact information set forth below is the current address and telephone number for the Bidder. The Bidder acknowledges that, if the District attempts to contact the Bidder for any purpose relating to this Bid (including, without limitation, to request additional information or to provide a Notice of Award), but the District is unable to reach the Bidder because information set forth below is not correct, then the District may reject this Bid and, in such event, the District shall have no liability to the Bidder whatsoever.

Bidder Street Address:	 
Telephone Number:	

	Contact Email:			
L.	The Bidder is organized as	s a (check o	nly one):	
	☐ Corporation		Limited Liability Company	☐ General Partnership
	☐ Sole Proprietorship		Other (describe):	
M.	The Bidder is organized p	ursuant to t	the laws of the state of:	
N.		rior to the I	s that, unless it withdraws this Bid Deadline, the Bidder may n dline.	
Repr	esentative Name:			
Repr	esentative Title:			
Repr	esentative Signature:			
Date	Signed:			

## **DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING**

Proje Bid I	rict: Oxnard Union High Schect: Swimming Pool Repair Package No.: 596 Posing Contractor:	
		s to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of ollowing is true and correct:
(i)	The undersigned is a duly- executed this certification	authorized representative of the Bidder and, in that capacity, has on behalf of the Bidder.
(ii)	Practices Act (Public Contr	erstands the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair act Code Section 4100 <i>et seq</i> .), including, without limitation, the g any subcontractor, or listing more than one subcontractor, for any Project.
(iii)		knowledges that, if Bid alternates are required, the Bidder must submit f subcontractors for each such Bid alternate.
(iv)	on the following Attachme subcontractor shall be dul	Bidder will use, if awarded a contract for work on the Project, are listed on the Sheet(s), and the Bidder represents and warrants that each such and appropriately licensed by the Contractors State License Board of r to commencing any of the Work.
(v)	deadline, the Bidder must	cknowledges that, not later than twenty-four hours following the Bid submit to the District, in writing, the address, telephone number, and ast name, for each listed subcontractor.
(vi)	Bidder shall not, without t a listed subcontractor; (ii) transferred; (iii) allow any applicable listed subcontra	cknowledges that, if awarded a contract for work on the Project, the ne District's written consent: (i) substitute any subcontractor in place of permit any subcontract for work on the Project to be assigned or such work, labor or service to be performed by anyone other than the actor; or (iv) sublet or subcontract any of the work in excess of one-half total Bid for which the Bidder did not list a subcontractor.
Repr	resentative Name:	
Repr	resentative Title:	
Repr	esentative Signature:	
Date	Signed:	

**Note:** This certification page must be accompanied by the list of subcontractors on the following attachment sheet. Make and use copies of the attachment sheet, as necessary to list additional subcontractors.

#### **SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING – ATTACHMENT SHEET**

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District **Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing Bid Package No.: 596** Proposing Contractor: Attachment Sheet \_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_ 1. Subcontractor Name: CSLB License No.: Location of Business: Portion of Work: \_\_\_\_\_ DIR No.: \_\_\_\_\_ 2. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Location of Business: Portion of Work: DIR No.: 3. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Location of Business: \_\_\_\_\_ Portion of Work: DIR No.: \_\_\_\_\_ 4. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Location of Business: Portion of Work: \_\_\_\_\_\_ DIR No.: \_\_\_\_\_ 5. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Location of Business: Portion of Work: DIR No.: 6. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_ Location of Business: Portion of Work: \_\_\_\_\_ DIR No.: \_\_\_\_ 7. Subcontractor Name: \_\_\_\_\_ CSLB License No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Location of Business: Portion of Work: \_\_\_\_\_\_ DIR No.: \_\_\_\_\_

#### **BID BOND**

District: Oxnard Union High School District

Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing

Bid Package No.: 596

Contractor (insert full legal name):

Surety (insert full legal name):

Penal Sum: Ten percent (10%) of Contractor's Total Base Bid Amount

The Contractor (identified above and referred to herein as, the "Principal") has provided this Bid bond in connection with the Bid submitted by the Principal to the School District (identified above) for the construction of the public works project identified above ("Project").

In issuing this Bid bond, the Surety (identified above) certifies to the School District that the Surety is "an admitted surety insurer" as defined in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120.

We, the Principal and the Surety, as evidenced by the signatures of our respective duly-authorized representatives set forth below, are hereby held and firmly bound unto the School District in the amount of the Penal Sum specified above, for the payment of which amount, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns as specified below.

The payment obligation described above shall become null and void if: (i) the School District awards the contract for construction of the Project ("Contract") to the Principal based on the Bid described above and, within the required number of days after the notice of such award, the Principal enters into the Contract and provides to the School District the required payment and performance bonds; (ii) the School District rejects all Bids received for the Project; or (iii) the time period during which the Principal may not withdraw its Bid has expired without the School District awarding the Contract to the Principal.

If, however, the School District awards the Contract to the Principal, but the Principal fails and/or refuses to enter into the Contract and/or to properly and duly-execute and deliver the required payment bond, performance bond, and/or other required documentation, then, immediately upon request of the School District and without imposing any additional conditions on payment whatsoever, the Surety and/or the Principal shall forfeit and pay to the School District such amount as the School District states is the total of the costs reasonably incurred by the District as a result of such failure or refusal by the Principal, including, without limitation, the difference between the Principal's Bid and the Bid for the Project subsequently accepted by the School District, re-Proposing of the Project if necessary, and administrative, publication, and other costs incurred by the School District. In no event, however, shall the liability pursuant to this Bid bond exceed the penal sum of this Bid bond.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that this Bid bond and the Surety's obligations hereunder shall be and remain in effect until such time as one or more of the conditions described herein for rendering this Bid bond null and void have been satisfied. The Surety, for value received, further stipulates and agrees that this Bid bond shall in no way be impaired or otherwise affected by any extension of the time within which the School District may accept the Principal's Bid for

the Project or of the time within which the Principal must enter into the Contract and submit the required documentation, and Surety hereby waives any requirement for notice of any such extension.

Each person signing this Bid bond on behalf of either the Principal or the Surety hereby represents and warrants that he or she has been duly authorized to sign, and thereby bind such party to, this Bid bond.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and Surety, acting by and through their respective, duly-authorized representatives, have executed this instrument on the date indicated below and affixed the name and, if applicable, corporate seal of each party.

Principal:	(Corporate or Individual Name)	_
Business Address:		_ _
Authorized Signature: Date Signed:	(Must be Notarized)	– _ (Affix Corporate Seal) –
Surety:	(Corporate Name)	_
Business Address:		_ _
Authorized Signature: Date Signed:	(Must be Notarized)	– _ (Affix Corporate Seal) –
(The following is to be o	completed by Surety.)	
The rate of premium or	n this bond is: \$	per thousand dollars.
Total amount of premi	um charged is: \$	<u></u> .

Note:	A certified copy of the Power of Attorney of the Surety's authorized signatory must be attached to this Bid bond.

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING DVBE COMPLIANCE**

Distri	District: Oxnard Union High School District						
_	Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing						
	ackage No.: 596						
Contr	actor:						
the Co Contr subco	The undersigned hereby certifies that: (i) the undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Contractor; and (ii) the Contractor made reasonable efforts, as required by the Contract, to secure participation in the Contract by Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises ("DVBE"), including participation by DVBE subcontractors, material suppliers, and others. The undersigned further certifies, on behalf of the Contractor, as follows:						
CHEC	K ONLY ONE OF THE FOLLO	DWING:					
	THE CONTRACTOR DID NOT SECURE DVBE PARTICIPATION IN THE CONTRACT. However, the Contractor will use DVBE services if the opportunity reasonably arises at any time during construction of the Project. Upon completion of the Project and as a condition precedent to final payment to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract, the Contractor will report to the District the total dollar amount of DVBE participation in the Contract, including, without limitation, any work performed pursuant to Change Orders applicable to the Project.						
	THE CONTRACTOR DID SECURE DVBE PARTICIPATION IN THE CONTRACT, AS DESCRIBED ON THE ATTACHMENT SHEET(S) ATTACHED HERETO. The Contractor will use additional DVBE services if the opportunity reasonably arises at any time during construction of the Project. Upon completion of the Project and as a condition precedent to final payment to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract, the Contractor will report to the District the actual total dollar amount of DVBE participation in the Contract, including, without limitation, any work performed pursuant to Change Orders applicable to the Project.						
Repre	esentative Name:						
Repre	esentative Title:						
Repre	sentative Signature:						
Date S	Signed:						

#### CERTIFICATE REGARDING DVBE COMPLIANCE – ATTACHMENT SHEET

<b>District:</b> Oxnard Ur	nion High School District
<b>Project: Swimming</b>	g Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing
Bid Package No.: 5	.96
Contractor:	
Attachment Sheet	of

DVBE Name (see Note 1)	DVBE Address/Phone	State DVBE Certification Number	Type of Participation (see Note 2)	Amount (\$) of Participation

Note 1: If no DVBE participated in the Contract, enter "NA' in the first space under the "DVBE Name" column.

Note 2: Types of DVBE participation may include but are not limited to: (i) construction; (ii) Architect/Consultant and/or engineering; (iii) suppliers of materials, equipment and/or supplies; and (iv) information technology.

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16

RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING IRAN CONTRACTING ACT**

Proj Bid	ect Pac		•	ool District  S & Deck Resurfacing
		_		alty for perjury, hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for he State of California, that the following is true and correct:
(i)	he	he undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor (identified above and, erein, the "Bidder") and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Bidder; nd		
(ii)	The appropriate box is checked immediately below (check only one box), and the statement relating to the Bidder's status in regard to the Iran Contracting Act of 2010 (Public Contract Code Section 2200 <i>et seq.</i> ) following such box is true and correct.			
		The Bid	der is not:	
		(i)	Iran prepared by	current list of persons and entities engaging in investment activities in the California Department of General Services in accordance with f Public Contract Code Section 2203; or
		(ii)	\$20,000,000 or r persons and ent Department of G Code Section 22	ution that extends, for forty-five days or more, credit in the amount of more to any other person or entity identified on the current list of ties engaging in investment activities in Iran prepared by the California General Services in accordance with subdivision (b) of Public Contract 03, if that person or entity uses or will use the credit to provide goods onergy sector in Iran.
		after m	aking a public fin	d the Bidder from the requirements of the Iran Contracting Act of 2010 ding that, absent the exemption, the District will be unable to obtain the provided pursuant to the Contract.
				unt payable to the Bidder in connection with the Project, as of the date not exceed one million dollars.
	rea	ter of \$250		act Code Section 2205, false certification of this form may result in civil penalties equal ntract Amount, termination of the Contract and/or ineligibility to Bid on contracts for
Rep	res	entative	Name:	
Rep	res	entative	Title:	
Rep	res	entative	Signature:	
Date	e Si	gned:		

# **NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION**

District: Oxnard Union High School District								
Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing								
Bid Package No.: 596  Contractor:								
The undersigned hereby de	eclares:							
I am the	(insert pos	ition) of						
	(insert Contractor name), the party making the foregoing Bid.							
association, organization, or not directly or indirectly indirectly has not directly or indirectly put in a sham Bid, or to refer sought by agreement, com-	interest of, or on behalf of, and or corporation. The Bid is genu duced or solicited any other Billy colluded, conspired, conniversing from Proposing. The Bidding munication, or conference with any overhead, profit, or cost elections in the Bid are true.	ine and not collusive of idder to put in a false of the color of the c	or sham. The Bidder has or sham Bid. The Bidder Bidder or anyone else to ner, directly or indirectly, diprice of the Bidder or					
The Bidder has not, directly	y or indirectly, submitted his o	r her Bid price or any b	oreakdown thereof, or					
	vulged information or data rela	·						
	anization, Bid depository, or to							
collusive or snam Bid, and i	has not paid, and will not pay,	any person or entity to	or such purpose.					
venture, limited liability co	declaration on behalf of a Bidd mpany, limited liability partne er to execute, and does execut	rship, or any other ent	ity, hereby represents					
I declare under penalty for	perjury under the laws of the	State of California that	t the foregoing is true and					
correct and that this declar	ration is executed on		(insert date), at					
	(insert city),		(insert state).					
Representative Name:								
Representative Signature:								
Date Signed:								

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING SITE VISIT**

District: Oxnard Union High School District  Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing  Bid Package No.: 596  Contractor:						
Site V	Site Visit Date:					
The undersigned hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California, that the following is true and correct:						
(i)	The undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Bidder and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Bidder.					
(ii)	I have sufficient knowledge, experience and/or resources to have undertaken the activities and reached the conclusions described and set forth in this Certification Regarding Site Visit.					
(iii)	On the Site Visit Date(s) specified above, I inspected the Project Site and all conditions at the Project Site that will or might affect the performance of the Work or the portion thereof to be performed by the Bidder if awarded the Contract, including, without limitation: (a) the general shape, layout, slope, crossfall and other features of the Project Site; (b) any right-of-way and access limitations affecting the Project Site; (c) any existing buildings, hardscape, paving and other improvements on, at or in the vicinity of the Project Site; (d) any encroachments on the Project Site; (e) any manholes, pullboxes, valves and valveboxes, backflow preventers, stormdrain inlets and outlets, and/or similar features on, at or in the vicinity of the Project Site that may indicate the presence of subsurface utilities or other improvements on the Project Site; (f) any reasonably-apparent past or present uses of the Project Site, and reasonably-apparent age or condition of any improvements on or at the Project Site, that may indicate presence of any asbestos, lead or other hazardous materials on or at the Project Site; and (g) any mature trees or other vegetation, natural drainage or watercourses, or other landscape features on or in the vicinity of the Project Site.					
(iv)	I am fully acquainted with all conditions that will affect the Work or the portion thereof to be performed by the Bidder if awarded the Contract, and I fully understand the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending the execution of such Work; and such understanding is hereby attributed to and deemed to be the understanding of the Bidder.					
(v)	In connection with the Work or the portion thereof to be performed by the Bidder if awarded the Contract, the Bidder accepts full responsibility for all conditions on, at or in the vicinity of the Project Site affecting such Work, including, without limitation, any as described herein, that reasonably could have been observed or identified during my visit to the Project Site.					
Repre Repre	sentative Name:  sentative Title:  sentative Signature:  Signed:					

# **REFERENCES**

rict: Oxnard Union High School District ect: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing					
Pa	ackage No.: 596				
ra	ractor:				
er	r must provide at least three (3) references of a public District projec				
	within the last five (5) ye	ars.			
ER	RENCE NAMES:				
	Telephone:				
	Email:				
	Contact:				
	Completion Date:				
	Telephone:				
	Email:				
	Completion Dates:				
	Completion Dates:				
	Telephone:				
	Email:				
	Contact:				
	Completion Dates:				
	<del></del>				
	Telephone:				
	Email:				
	Contact:				
	Completion Dates:				
	Telephone:				
	Email:				
	Contact:				

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

Completion Dates: \_\_\_\_\_

# CERTIFICATION of CONTRACTOR and SUBCONTRACTOR DIVISION OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS REGISTRATION

District: Oxnard Union High School District
Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing
Bid Package No.: 596
Contractor:
Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 1725.5, a contractor or subcontractor must be registered with the Department of Industrial relations in order to bid on, to be listed in a bid proposal or to engage in the performance of any defined public work contract.
I certify that
(Name) (Title)
is currently registered as a contractor with the Department of Industrial
(Contractor Name)
Relations (DIR):
Contractor's DIR Registration Number
Expiration date June 30, 20
Contract further acknowledges:
1. Contractor shall maintain DIR registered status for the duration of the project without a gap in registration.
2. Contractor shall note in its invitation to bid the DIR's registration requirement for all subcontractors and their subcontractors.
3. Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors are registered at time of bid opening and maintain registered status for the duration of the project.
4. Contractor is to furnish DIR Registration Number for all subcontractors on the project within 24 hours of the bid opening.
<ol><li>Contractor shall substitute any subcontractor with a DIR registered contractor if listed subcontractor is unable to perform the work.</li></ol>
Failure to comply with any of the above may result in a determination of non-responsiveness.
I declare under penalty of perjury under California law that the foregoing is true and correct.
Contractor Signature
 Date

### **REQUIRED CONTRACT FORMS**

The Contractor must complete, duly execute, and submit the following forms to the District when required after award of the Contract:

- 1. Agreement for Construction Services
- 2. Certification Regarding Employee Background Checks
- 3. Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace
- 4. Certification Regarding Tobacco-Free Workplace
- 5. Certification Regarding Workers Compensation
- 6. Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials
- 7. Certification Regarding Asbestos-Containing Materials
- 8. Payment Bond
- 9. Performance Bond
- 10. Certification Regarding DVBE Participation
- 11. Certificate of Insurance
- 12. Certificate Regarding Prevailing Wage & Related Labor Requirements

## **AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC WORKS/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES**

This Agreement for Construction Services is made effective as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, by and between the Oxnard Union High School District ("District"), a public school district organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of California, and <code>[insert Contractor's full legal name]</code> ("Contractor"), a <code>[insert state in which Contractor organized and type of entity]</code>. The District and the Contractor may hereinafter be referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as the "Parties."

**Section 1. Project.** The Parties have entered into the Contract with respect to the following public works construction project of the District ("Project"): **Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing 596** 

Section 2. Component Parts of Contract. The entire understanding agreement between the District and the Contractor (the "Contract") includes and by this reference incorporates in full all of the documents described in this Section (collectively the "Contract Documents"). The Contract Documents are intended to be complementary and form an integrated and binding whole. Contractor shall perform the work required by any one of the Contract Documents, even if that work is not referenced in any other Contract Document, as if that work is required by each and every Contract Document. The Contract Documents include:

- (i) Notice Inviting Bids
- (ii) Instructions For Bidders
- (iii) Description of Work
- (iv) Master Schedule
- (v) All Required Bid Forms, including, without limitation, Contractor's completed and executed Bid Form
- (vi) Notice of Award
- (vii) All plans, drawings, and specifications for the Project, including, without limitation, attachments thereto and any and all approved shop-drawing submittals ("Plans and Specifications")
- (viii) All Required Contract Forms, including, without limitation, Contractor's completed and executed Agreement for Construction Services
- (ix) Special Provisions
- (x) General Provisions
- (xi) Any and all Change Orders and other duly-approved modifications to the Contract Documents
- (xii) Each addendum to the Plans and Specifications
- (xiii) Each response to Bidder Clarification Request

Section 3. Scope of Work. The Contractor shall, at its own cost and expense, furnish all construction and other services (including, but not limited to, all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, administration, supervision, and incidental and customary work) necessary and appropriate to fully and adequately complete the Project in strict accordance with the Contract Documents ("Work"). Should any detail or dimension be inadvertently omitted from the Plans and Specifications, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to request from the Architect/Consultant the required details or information and to perform the Work in conformance therewith so that, upon completion of the Work, it will be acceptable and ready for use by the District.

Section 4. Completion of Work. Time is of the essence with respect to completion of the Project. The Contract requires the exact and full performance of the Work by the Contractor. The District shall provide notice to the Contractor specifying the date upon which the Contractor is to commence the Work ("Notice to Proceed"). Unless the time for performance is extended pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Contractor shall complete all of the Work by the date specified in the Master Schedule. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that: (i) it shall perform the Work in strict conformance with all schedule(s) or project milestone(s) set forth in the Master Schedule; and (ii) the Master Schedule is subject to revision depending on actual conditions in the field and other factors, and as otherwise provided by the Contract. The Contractor must perform the Work in full compliance with the Master Schedule, including, without limitation, as it may be revised in accordance with the Contract, without additional compensation except as may be permitted pursuant to the Contract Documents. The legal doctrine that a contractor may recover for a substantial performance of a building contract (i.e., "Doctrine of Substantial Performance") shall not be deemed or construed to apply to the Contract.

**Section 5. Certification of Contractor's License.** In entering into the Contract, the Contractor hereby certifies that as of the date of execution of the Contract, the Contractor possesses a current and valid "A" License contractor's license issued by the Contractors State License Board of the State of California, which license the Contractor represents and warrants is appropriate for the Contractor, in conjunction with any subcontractors listed in the Bid Form, to perform the Work in accordance with California law.

**Section 6. Payment to Contractor.** In exchange for the full and satisfactory performance of the Work, the District shall pay to the Contractor the total, all-inclusive amount of [insert total payment amount in words] (\$insert payment amount in numbers) ("Contract Amount"). The Contract Amount shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the Contract Documents through authorized Change Orders approved by the District. Payments to the Contractor shall be made as the Work progresses ("Progress Payments") based upon Applications/Requests for Payment and subject to Retention, as set forth in the General Provisions.

**Section 7. District Representative.** The authorized representative of the District for purposes of the administration of the Contract ("District Representative") shall be Deanna Rantz, the Director of Purchasing, who may be reached at (805) 385-2519. With respect to the matters within the authority of the District Representative, the Contractor shall not accept any instruction or direction from any person purporting to represent the District other than the District Representative or his or her designee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each of the District's Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent of Administrative Services shall have authority to act on behalf of the District for all purposes of the Contract, including, among other situations, if the District Representative is not available on a timely basis.

**Section 8. Notices.** Each notice, demand, and other communication required or given pursuant to the Contract must be in writing, duly addressed as indicated below, and given by: (i) personal delivery (signature on delivery receipt requested); (ii) registered or certified mail (postage prepaid and return receipt requested); or (iii) U.P.S., FedEx or other reliable private express delivery (delivery charge prepaid and signature on electronic or other delivery receipt requested). Such notices, demands or communications shall be deemed given, served, or received only upon actual receipt. This section shall not be deemed or construed to apply to day-to-day communications between the Parties

for purposes of administering the Contract or performance of the Work, or to service of process in accordance with any applicable law or rule of court. Any Party to the Contract may change its below-specified name, address, or person to whom attention should be directed by giving notice as specified in this Section. Notices, demands, and other communications, as applicable, shall be duly addressed as follows:

#### To the District:

Oxnard Union High School District Attn: Deanna Rantz Director of Purchasing 309 S. "K" Street Oxnard, CA 93030

With Copy:
------------

Oxnard Union High School District
Attn: Jeffrey Weinstein, Assistant Superintendent
Business Services
309 S. "K" Street
Oxnard, CA 93030

To the	<u>Contract</u>	tor:	
Attn:			
	, (	CA	

Notwithstanding anything in the Contract to the contrary, in the event of any emergency or urgent situation, the Contractor must make reasonable attempts to contact the District Representative by telephone and shall follow up such telephone contact with written confirmation. Telephone numbers for "after hours" communications are:

District Representative: (805) 385-2519

Contractor Representative: (\_\_\_\_) \_\_\_- and (\_\_\_\_) \_\_\_-\_\_

The Contractor shall notify the District within five business days of any change in its address, facsimile number, or telephone number(s), and failure of Contractor to provide such notice shall be deemed a material breach of the Contract.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, the District will timely notify the Contractor of any third-party claim relating to the Contract by mailing notice of receipt of such claim within ten calendar days. Public Contract Code Section 9201 provides that the District shall be entitled to its reasonable costs incurred in providing this notice to the Contractor.

**Section 9. Attorney's Fees.** In the event of any action or other proceeding to enforce the Contract and/or to resolve any dispute between the Parties related thereto, each Party shall be responsible for paying its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such action or proceeding, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses.

**Section 10. Entire Agreement.** The Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the performance of the Work by the Contractor and supersedes any and all prior communications, negotiations, understandings, and agreements related to the Work, whether oral or written. The Contract may be modified only by written instrument duly-approved and signed by both

Parties. Any provision, printed or otherwise, contained in any acknowledgment of the Contract or purchase order or invoice related to the Contract that is inconsistent with, different from, or in addition to the terms and conditions contained in the Contract or any documents specifically referenced and incorporated herein, shall have no force or effect.

- **Section 11. Assignment.** Contractor shall not assign, sublet or by any other means transfer the Contract or any obligation, right, title or interest herein, including right to payments hereunder, without the prior written consent of District. The Contract shall be binding on any authorized assignee, sublessee, transferee, or other successor to the Contractor. If Contractor attempts, without District permission, to assign, sublet or by any other means transfer the Contract or any obligation, right, title or interest herein, the District may, at its option, terminate the Contract and shall thereafter be relieved from any and all obligations to Contractor and any purported assignee, sublessee, or transferee.
- **Section 12. Counterparts.** The Contract may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
- **Section 13. Due Authority.** Each individual that signs the Contract on behalf of a Party thereby represents and warrants that he or she has been authorized by appropriate action of such Party to sign, and thereby bind such Party to, the Contract.

*In Witness Whereof,* the duly-authorized representatives of the Parties have executed the Contract, as evidenced by their signatures below.

Oxnard Union High School District	[insert Contractor Company Name]
Ву:	Ву:
Print Name: <u>Jeffrey Weinstein</u>	Print Name:
Title: Asst Supt Business Services	Title:
Dated:	Dated:

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING EMPLOYEE BACKGROUND CHECKS**

Bid	Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing  Bid Package No.: 596  Contractor:			
	undersigned hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of State of California, that the following is true and correct:			
(i)	The undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Contractor;			
(ii)	The Contractor has fully complied with the requirements of Section 3.7 of the General Provisions for employee background checks, including, without limitation, with respect to employees of any subcontractors that the Contractor intends to use on the Project;			
(iii)	All of the employees of the Contractor and its subcontractors who will enter in or upon the Project Site, or be in the vicinity of the Project Site, in connection with the Project are identified on the Attachment(s) to this certification;			
(iv)	None of the employees of the Contractor or its subcontractors who are identified on the Attachment(s) to this certification have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Subdivision (c) of Education Code Section 45125.2; and			
(v)	Except for the employees identified on the Attachment(s) to this certification (and except for the employees identified on attachment(s) to other certifications using this form that the Contractor has submitted to the District in connection with the Project), the Contractor shall not suffer or permit any employees of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors to enter in or upon the Project Site, or to be in the vicinity of the Project Site, in connection with the Project.			
Rep	resentative Name:			
Rep	resentative Title:			
Rep	resentative Signature:			
Date	e Signed:			

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District

## CERTIFICATION REGARDING EMPLOYEE BACKGROUND CHECKS – ATTACHMENT SHEET

Contractor:		

### Instructions

- (1) For each employee, insert all required information (as specified in the table below) in one row of the table.
- (2) In the "Driver License/Identification" column in the table below: (i) specify the number of the employee's driver's license or, if the employee does not have a driver's license, the number of the employee's state-issued identification; and (ii) specify the state that issued the driver's license or identification.

(3) If identifying more than ten employees: (i) use copies of this Attachment to identify the additional employees; and (ii) on each such copy, specify the page number and total number of pages where indicated at the bottom of this Attachment.

	Employee Name and Position	Sex	Date of Birth	Height	Weight	Hair Color	Eye Color	Driver License/Identification #
1								
2								
3								
4								
5								
6								
7								
8								
9								
10								

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE**

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District

			•	& Deck Resurfacir	ng	
	Packa tracto	_	.: 596			
		-	•	s to the District, sub ollowing is true and	oject to penalty for perjury pur I correct:	suant to the laws of
(i)			-	uthorized represen on behalf of the Cor	tative of the Contractor and, in	n that capacity, has
(ii)					nt Code Section 8350 <i>et seq.,</i> t ee workplace by doing all of th	_
	(a)	disp orga	ensation, possess	ion or use of a cont ace and specifying	ees that the unlawful manufac crolled substance is prohibited actions which will be taken aga	in the person's or
	(b)	Estal		ee awareness progr drug abuse in the v	ram to inform employees abou vorkplace;	at all of the following:
		(2) (3)	· ·	=	cy of maintaining a drug-free v , rehabilitation and employee-	
		(4)	The penalties th	nat may be imposed	d upon employees for drug abo	use violations.
	(c)	the s	statement require	ed by subdivision (a	n the performance of the Cont ) above and that, as a conditio le by the terms of the stateme	n of employment on
(iii)	certi impl subj	fication ement ect to	on given herein is t the requiremen termination, susp	false or that the Co ts of Government C pension of payment	es that, if the District determinant of the District determinant of the Contractor violated this certification of the Contractor of Government Code Section	tion by failing to Contract shall be shall be subject to
Rep	resen	tative	Name:			
Rep	resen	tative	Title:			
Rep	resen	tative	Signature:			
Date	e Sign	ed:				
1403	8.L-01	5/19081: 03-22-: nming Po		irfacing OHS		

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING TOBACCO-FREE WORKPLACE**

Proj Bid	roject: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing id Package No.: 596 contractor:				
	undersigned hereby certifies State of California, that the f	s to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of ollowing is true and correct:			
(i)	The undersigned is a duly-a executed this certification of	uthorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has on behalf of the Contractor.			
(ii)		a tobacco-free workplace by providing the following provision, in viding any labor or services on or at the Project Site, including, without sonnel:			
	without limitation, the Prowhile in, on or at any Dist chew or otherwise use to (including, without limital supplier) found in violation	is operated by the Oxnard Union High School District, including, oject Site, are tobacco-free work places. It is strictly forbidden rict property or facility (whether owned or leased) to smoke, bacco products. The Contractor shall require each person tion, any employee of the Contractor or any subcontractor or on of these requirements to permanently leave the Project Site, not thereafter permit such person to be present in, on, or at the			
Rep	resentative Name:				
Representative Title:					
Representative Signature:					
Dat	e Signed:				

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING WORKERS COMPENSATION**

Proj Bid	Project: Oxnard Onion Fight School District  Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing  Bid Package No.: 596  Contractor:				
	undersigned hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of State of California, that the following is true and correct:				
(i)	The undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Contractor as required by Labor Code Section 1861; and				
(ii)	The Contractor is aware of the provisions of Labor Code Section 3700 <i>et seq.</i> , which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, and the Contractor shall comply with such provisions prior to commencing and throughout the entirety of performance of the Work on the Project.				
Rep	presentative Name:				
Rep	presentative Title:				
Rep	epresentative Signature:				

Date Signed:

## NOTICE AND CERTIFICATION REGARDING LEAD-CONTAINING MATERIALS

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District

**Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing** 

Bid Package No.: 596

Contractor: \_\_\_\_\_

#### **NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR:**

If the Work involves or relates to other than entirely new construction, the Work may disturb lead-containing or lead-based paint and other building materials that may be incorporated into existing buildings or other improvements located on the Project Site. Until sampling and testing confirms otherwise, it shall be presumed that all school buildings and improvements built in 1992 or earlier contain lead-based or lead-containing paint. The Contractor must complete, sign, and submit a copy of this Lead-Containing Materials Notice and Certification to the District prior to commencing the Work.

The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that its employees and subcontractors fully and adequately comply with, and that the Work is performed in conformance with, all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations governing lead-based or lead-containing paint and other materials, including, but not limited to: (i) Education Code Section 32240 *et seq.*; (ii) Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 1532.1; and (iii) Title 17, California Code of Regulations, Section 35001 *et seq.* 

If the Work involves renovation, modernization or other disturbance of any existing school buildings or improvements, the Contractor shall sample and test all materials as appropriate to determine whether lead-based paint or other materials are present and may present a hazard or threat during any such renovation or modernization. The Contractor shall provide the District with the results of any and all such testing, whether conducted prior to commencement of the Work, during the Work, or after completion of the Work.

Any and all Work that may result in the disturbance of lead-containing building materials must be coordinated through the District. Consistent with applicable law, when a lead-based hazard is identified, the Contractor shall utilize personnel certified by the Department of Health Services ("DHS") to perform lead-related services. The District may at any time request that Contractor provide the training and certification records of each employee of the Contractor or subcontractor who provides lead-related services. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for proper disposal, in conformance with all applicable laws, of any and all lead-containing, lead-based or hazardous waste products including, but not limited to, paint chips, residue, and any other material that may be exposed or disturbed during the course of the Work.

California law prohibits, in the construction of any new school facility or in the modernization or renovation of any existing school facility, the use of lead-containing or lead-based paint, plumbing, solders, and other materials that may constitute a potential source of lead contamination.

In the event the Contractor or its employees or subcontractors fail to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations related to lead-containing or lead-based paints and other materials, or fail to BAW&G/BWS/190812

14038.L-01 03-22-16

RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

comply with any other requirements set forth in this Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials, the Contractor shall be held solely responsible for any and all costs associated with any investigative and/or corrective actions deemed necessary by the District, and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Contract for the Work, with respect to any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, costs, expenses, and other liabilities arising therefrom.

### **CERTIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR:**

The undersigned hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California, that the following is true and correct:

- (i) The undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has executed this certification on behalf of the Contractor;
- (ii) The Contractor is aware and acknowledges that, in circumstances described in this Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials, lead-based paint and/or other lead-containing materials may be located on the Project Site;
- (iii) The Contractor understands its obligation to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to work with, and disposal of, lead-based paint and/or other lead-containing materials; and
- (iv) In connection with the performance of the Work, the Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to work with, and disposal of, lead-based paint and/or other lead-containing materials, as well as the other requirements of this Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials.

Representative Name:	
Representative Title:	
·	
Representative Signature:	
Date Signed:	

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS**

Proj Bid	ect: Pack	Oxnard Union High School District  Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing  age No.: 596
Con	tract	or:
		rsigned hereby certifies to the District, subject to penalty for perjury pursuant to the laws of of California, that the following is true and correct:
(i)		undersigned is a duly-authorized representative of the Contractor and, in that capacity, has cuted this certification on behalf of the Contractor.
(ii)	The	Contractor is aware and acknowledges that, for purposes of this certification:
	(a)	Asbestos is any of chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, actinolite or other minerals generally known as asbestos; and
	(b)	An asbestos-containing material is any material or thing, or any component thereof, that contains, consists of, or is made up of greater than one-tenth of one percent asbestos.
(iii)	con	Contractor shall not use on, or incorporate into, the Project any asbestos or asbestosaining materials, including, without limitation, in any tools, devices, clothing, or equipment in the construction of any portion of the Project.
(iv)	agai	Contractor has instructed its employees and subcontractors in regard to such prohibition nst asbestos and asbestos-containing materials, and in regard to the hazards, risks and lities involved in the use of asbestos and asbestos-containing materials.
(v)	The	Contractor acknowledges and agrees that:
	(a)	Each dispute as to whether any material, equipment or other thing used on, or incorporated into, the Work contains asbestos or is an asbestos-containing material shall be settled by electron microscopy;
	(b)	The costs of any such tests shall be paid by the Contractor if the material is found to contain asbestos at a level greater than as specified herein; and
	(c)	The District shall reject any and all materials or other things incorporated into the Work that are determined to contain asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, and the Contractor, at no cost to the District, must remove, replace and/or repair as necessary any and all affected portions of the Work.
Rep	reser	tative Name:
Rep	reser	tative Title:
Rep	reser	tative Signature:
	e Sigr	ed:

RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

14038.L-01 03-22-16

## **PAYMENT BOND**

<b>Project: Swim</b>	nming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing		
Bid Package I	No.: 596		
Contractor:			
Surety:			
Bond #:			
Penal Sum:		(\$	)

**WHEREAS,** the Project identified above is a public work and a public project in accordance with applicable law, and the School District identified above awarded to the Contractor (identified above and, herein, the "Principal") a contract providing for completion of the Bid Package for the Project as specified above ("Contract");

**WHEREAS,** the Contract and/or California Civil Code Section 9550 *et seq.* require(s) that the Principal furnish a labor and materials payment bond to the School District that ensures the faithful performance of the Principal's obligations pursuant to the Contract to pay for materials, labor and other things as required by law, which bond must have a penal sum equal to one hundred percent of the total amount payable by the School District to the Principal pursuant to the Contract; and

**WHEREAS,** the Surety identified above hereby represents to the School District that the Surety is an "admitted surety insurer" in accordance with Section 995.120 of the California Code of Civil Procedure;

**NOW, THEREFORE,** we, the Principal and Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound to the School District in an amount of lawful money of the United States of America equal to the Penal Sum specified above, the payment of which well and truly to be made, we hereby bind, jointly and severally, ourselves and our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is that, if the Principal, or any of its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, or any of its subcontractors, fail in connection with the Project to pay as and when required (1) any of the persons authorized by California Civil Code Section 9100 to assert a claim against the Payment Bond, (2) amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed pursuant to the Contract, or (3) any amounts required to be deducted, withheld and paid over to the Employment Development Department from wages of employees of the Principal or any of its subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, then the Surety shall pay, in full, any and all claims for such amounts, in a total amount not in excess of the penal sum set forth herein, and also, in case suit is brought upon this Payment Bond, such reasonable attorney's fees as fixed by the court.

This Payment Bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all of the persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, so as to give a right of action to those persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this Payment Bond.

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

**District:** Oxnard Union High School District

The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that this Payment Bond shall not be exonerated and the Surety shall not be released from its obligations pursuant to this Payment Bond on account of: (1) any extension of time, change, amendment or other modification of the Contract or other Project documents, or of the Principal's rights and/or obligations pursuant thereto, and Surety hereby waives notice of any and all such modifications; (2) any rescission or attempted rescission of the Contract or this Payment Bond; (3) any fraud of any person or entity other than fraud of a claimant in making a claim on this Payment Bond; or (4) any breach of any contract by the School District, the Principal or any person or entity for whose benefit Surety has issued this Payment Bond. The Surety further stipulates and agrees that this Payment Bond shall be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of the persons and entities for whose benefit Surety has issued this Payment Bond.

The Surety shall not be deemed to have fully and appropriately executed this Payment Bond unless Surety has provided all of the following information:

SURETY'S SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA/LOCAL REPRESENTATIVE	SURETY'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR FILING CLAIMS
Company Name	Company Name
Street Address	Street Address
City, State, Zip Code	City, State, Zip Code
Representative Name	Representative Name
Representative Telephone Number	Representative Telephone Number

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.)

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS Each person that signs this Payment Bond on behalf of the Principal or the Surety thereby represents and warrants that the party he or she represents has duly authorized him or her to sign, and thereby bind such party to, this Payment Bond.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the Principal and Surety have executed this Payment Bond as evidenced by the signatures below, of their respective, duly-authorized representatives.

PRINCIPAL	SURETY
Company Name	Company Name
Representative Signature	Representative Signature
Representative Name	Representative Name
Representative Title	Representative Title
Date Signed	Date Signed
Principal: Attach Notary acknowledgment to this Payment Bond and, if applicable, imprint corporate seal in the space below this line.	Surety: Attach Notary acknowledgment and power of attorney to this Payment Bond and imprint corporate seal in the space below this line.

## **PERFORMANCE BOND**

District: (	Oxnard Union High School District
Project: S	Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing
Bid Packa	ge No.: 596
Contracto	)r:
Surety:	
Bond #:	
Penal Sun	n:(\$)

**WHEREAS,** the Project identified above is a public project in accordance with applicable law, and the School District identified above awarded to the Contractor (identified above, and herein, the "Principal") a contract providing for completion of the Bid Package for Project as specified above ("Contract");

**WHEREAS,** the Contract requires that the Principal furnish a bond to the School District that ensures the faithful performance of the Principal's obligations pursuant to the Contract to fully and satisfactorily perform the work and services required by the Contract (collectively, the "Work"), which bond must have a penal sum equal to one hundred percent of the total amount payable by the School District to the Principal pursuant to the Contract; and

**WHEREAS,** the Surety identified above hereby represents and warrants to the School District that the Surety is an "admitted surety insurer" in accordance with Section 995.120 of the California Code of Civil Procedure;

**NOW, THEREFORE,** we, the Principal and Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound to the School District in an amount of lawful money of the United States of America equal to the Penal Sum specified above, the payment of which well and truly to be made, we hereby bind, jointly and severally, ourselves and our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors.

THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING PAYMENT OBLIGATION is that, if the Principal (or, to the extent permitted by the Contract, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns) shall fully perform all of the undertakings, terms, covenants, conditions, agreements and other obligations required of the Principal pursuant to the Contract and any amendments or changes thereto, and shall complete the Work in full and strict conformance with the requirements thereof, all within the time and in the manner designated therein, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, then such obligation shall become null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect.

A condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract is that, after the acceptance of the Project by the School District, the payment obligation of this Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect, in the penal sum set forth herein, during all periods in which the Principal has any obligations pursuant to the Contract (including, without limitation, the obligations to make full, complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements of any defective materials and/or faulty workmanship, to pay liquidated damages and/or to indemnify the School District or any other party), and the obligation of Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any such obligation of Principal continues to exist. The

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS obligations of Surety pursuant to this Performance Bond are exclusive of and distinct from any obligations Surety may have pursuant to any labor and materials payment bond applicable to the Work.

Whenever the School District declares the Principal to be in default of its obligations pursuant to the Contract, the School District having performed its obligations thereunder, the Surety, promptly within the time required by the Contract, shall remedy the default or, at the School District's discretion, shall:

- (i) Complete the Work in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract, including, without limitation, provisions for the time(s) within which the Surety must act; or
- (ii) Obtain, or permit the School District to obtain, one or more Bids or Bids for any and all work required to complete the Work in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract, and upon determination of each lowest responsive and responsible Bidder or Bidder, arrange for such Bidder or Bidder and the School District to enter into a contract, which may be in accordance with Education Code Section 17406, and make available as the work progresses sufficient funds, up to and including a total amount equal to the penal sum set forth herein, to pay the cost of completing the Work.

In performing its obligations pursuant to this Performance Bond, the Surety expressly agrees that: (i) absent the express written consent of the School District, the Surety shall neither use the Principal nor accept a Bid or Bid from the Principal for purposes of completing the Work; and (ii) the School District shall have the right, in its reasonable discretion, to reject any contractor or subcontractor that the Surety may propose to fulfill such obligations. In the event the School District provides notice to the Surety that the Principal is in default of its obligations pursuant to the Contract and, therefore, the Surety is required, as provided herein, to complete the Work or to arrange for the School District to contract for completion of the Work, and, through no fault of the School District, the Surety has exceeded the time permitted pursuant to the Contract for doing so, the School District may arrange to use replacement contractor(s) selected and contracted for by the School District to complete the Work and, in such event, the Surety's payment and other obligations pursuant to this Performance Bond shall not be thereby diminished or otherwise limited.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in the event the School District determines that the Principal has not met, or likely will be unable to meet, any deadline required pursuant to the Contract, or that Principal's performance does not conform with the requirements of the Contract, the School District may notify the Surety. In such event, the Surety must make reasonable attempts to assist the Principal to resolve or avoid the default by the Principal. The Surety and Principal expressly agree that neither the giving of such notice by the School District nor the giving of such assistance by the Surety shall be deemed or construed to constitute interference by the School District or the Surety with the Contract or the ability of the Principal to obtain any bond(s) in any amount(s) from any surety insurer(s).

For value received, the Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that this Performance Bond shall not be exonerated and the Surety shall not be released from its obligations pursuant to this Performance Bond by any change, amendment or other modification of the Contract or other Project documents, or of the Principal's rights and/or obligations pursuant thereto, and Surety hereby waives notice of any and all such modifications.

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

## (The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.)

The Surety shall not be deemed to have fully and appropriately executed this Performance Bond unless Surety has provided all of the following information:

SURETY'S SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA/LOCAL REPRESENTATIVE	SURETY'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR FILING CLAIMS
Company Name	Company Name
Street Address	Street Address
City, State, Zip Code	City, State, Zip Code
Representative Name	Representative Name
Representative Telephone Number	Representative Telephone Number

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.)

Each person that signs this Performance Bond on behalf of the Principal or the Surety thereby represents and warrants that the party he or she represents has duly-authorized him or her to sign, and thereby bind such party to, this Performance Bond.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the Principal and Surety have executed this Performance Bond as evidenced by the signatures, below, of their respective, duly authorized representatives.

PRINCIPAL	SURETY
Company Name	Company Name
Representative Signature	Representative Signature
Representative Name	Representative Name
Representative Title	Representative Title
Date Signed	Date Signed
<u>Principal</u> : Attach Notary acknowledgment to this Performance Bond and, if applicable, imprint corporate seal in the space below this line.	Surety: Attach Notary acknowledgment and power of attorney to this Performance Bond and imprint corporate seal in the space below this line.

# **CERTIFICATION REGARDING DVBE PARTICIPATION**

District: Oxnard Union High School District  Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing  Bid Package No.: 596  Contractor:			
	indersigned hereby certific tate of California, that:	es to the District, subject to penalty for perjury p	oursuant to the laws of
(i)		lly-authorized representative of the Contractor at ion on behalf of the Contractor;	ınd, in that capacity, has
(ii)	the California-certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises ("DVBE") entities listed on the Attachment Sheet(s) hereto participated in the Contract for the above-referenced Project/Bid Package(s) to the extent described on such Attachment Sheet(s); and		
(iii)	DVBE participation in the	ne Contract totaled	
	dollars (\$	), which represents approximately Contract Amount, including any Change Orders,	percent
Contr	ractor Name:		
Representative Name:			
Representative Title:			
Representative Signature:			
Date Signed:			

## **CERTIFICATION REGARDING DVBE PARTICIPATION – ATTACHMENT SHEET**

District: Oxnard Union High School District
Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing
Bid Package No.: 596
Contractor:
Attachment Sheet of

DVBE Name (see Note 1)	DVBE Address/Phone	State DVBE Certification Number	Type of Participation (see Note 2)	Amount (\$) of Participation

Note 1: If no DVBE participated in the Contract, enter "NA' in the first space under the "DVBE Name" column.

Note 2: Types of DVBE participation may include but are not limited to: (i) construction; (ii) Architect/Consultant and/or engineering; (iii) suppliers of materials, equipment and/or supplies; and (iv) information technology.

BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16 RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

# **CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING PREVAILING WAGE**

District: Oxnard Union High School District
Project: Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing
Bid Package No.: 596
Contractor:
CERTIFICATION OF PREVAILING WAGE AND RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS between Oxnard Union High School District ("District") and ("Contractor" or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").
I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract requirements regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours-notice, payroll records, and apprentice and trainee employment requirements, for all work on the above Project including, without limitation, labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.
I hereby certify that I will also conform to the Federal Labor Standards Provisions regarding minimum wages, withholding, payrolls and basic records, apprentice and trainee employment requirements, equal employment opportunity requirements, Copeland Act requirements, Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act requirements, and any and all other applicable requirements for federal funding for all Work on the above Project.
Date:
Proper Name of Contractor:
Contractor Signature:
Print Name:
Title:
BAW&G/BWS/190812 14038.L-01 03-22-16

REQUIRED CONTRACT FORMS (RCF)

RFP 596 Swimming Pool Repairs & Deck Resurfacing OHS

## **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

- 1. <u>Effect of Special Provisions</u>. These Special Provisions establish specific requirements applicable to the Work, the Project and/or the Project Site. To the extent these Special Provisions conflict with any provisions of the other Contract Documents, expressly modify the other Contract Documents, or establish requirements in addition to those set forth in the other Contract Documents, the Special Provisions shall to that extent govern over the other Contract Documents; however, the unaffected provisions of the other Contract Documents shall remain in full force and effect.
- 2. Architect/Consultant. The Architect/Consultant for the Project is Jones and Madhavan.
- 3. <u>Project Manager</u>. There will be a Project Manager for the Project. The Project Manager is Poul Hanson.
- 4. <u>Copies of Plans and Specifications</u>. The District will not provide Plans to the Contractor. Drawings are attached as *Exhibit B*.
- 4. <u>Copies of Plans and Specifications.</u> Contractor shall be responsible for printing the sets of the Plans or Drawings, if applicable, and Specifications that it needs for construction of the Project using the electronic copy available on the District's website.
- 5. <u>Applicable Laws, Regulations, Ordinances, or Other Requirements</u>. In addition to other requirements described in the Contract Documents, the Contractor must obtain or otherwise comply with the requirements described below in this Section. For each, the Contractor must maintain on the Project Site a current copy of documentation that evidences satisfaction of such requirements. Such requirements are as follows:
  - (i) Business license issued by city or county (whichever is applicable) in which the Project Site is located.
- 6. **Field Office and Restroom Requirements.** The Contractor must furnish any and all necessary field offices and restrooms for the Project. The District will NOT provide field restrooms for the Project, and the Contractor's workforces will not have access to any existing restrooms at the Project Site.
- 7. <u>Dust Control</u>. The Contractor, at its own expense, shall undertake reasonable dust-control measures to prevent dust from originating within the Project Site, which measures shall include, but not be limited to, appropriate application of water or other approved dust palliative.
- 8. <u>Liquidated Damages.</u> As noted in Section 5.5 of the General Provisions, time is of the essence with respect to the Contract and Completion of the Work. The Liquidated Damages payable by the Contractor pursuant to Section 5.5 of the General Provisions shall be *\$1,000.00* per day or portion thereof.

- 9. Access to Project Site.
  - 9.1 The failure of the Contractor or any of its employees, subcontractors, materials suppliers or others connected with the Work to comply with the provisions of this Section shall be deemed a material breach of the Contract by Contractor.
  - 9.2 If the Project Site is an existing school of the District ("School"), none of the Contractor, its subcontractors, materials suppliers or others providing any work or services in connection with the Project shall arrive at, enter or be present on or in the vicinity of the School, and no portion of the Work shall be performed on or at the School, between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 3:30 p.m. on any weekday (Monday through Friday, inclusive) when School is in session.
  - 9.3 If the Project Site is a School, and the District has permitted exceptions to the prohibitions set forth in Subsection 9.2, above, the Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that each of its employees, and any employees of its subcontractors, materials suppliers and others providing any work or services in connection with the Project, who arrive at the Project Site during hours when the School is in session, shall check in at the School's administrative office before otherwise entering in and upon the Project Site. School staff shall escort all such persons to the locations on the Project Site where they are required and/or permitted to be in connection with the Work.
  - 9.4 The employees of the Contractor, its subcontractors, materials suppliers and others providing any work or services in connection with the Project must enter the School grounds and travel to the Project Site using only the designated entry gate and path of travel as directed by the District. If applicable, the Contractor must sign for and obtain from the District a key for such designated gate. The Contractor must return such key (and all copies of such key) to the District upon completion of the Project.
  - 9.5 At no time shall the employees or other personnel of the Contractor, its subcontractors, materials suppliers or others providing any work or services in connection with the Project be in the vicinity or in the presence of any student or students at the School unless a member of the School or District staff is also present.
- 10. <u>Employee Background Checks</u>. If this Section INITIALLY DOES NOT require that the Contractor comply with Section 3.7 of the General Provisions, the District reserves the right in appropriate circumstances to subsequently require that the Contractor comply with Section 3.7 of the General Provisions, including, without limitation, if the time for performance of the Work is, for any reason, extended beyond the time initially permitted pursuant to the Contract. Section 3.7 of the General Provisions initially shall:
  - ☑ be in effect and apply to the Contract.☐ NOT be in effect or apply to the Contract.
- 11. <u>Contractor General Liability Insurance</u>. The General Liability Policy described in Section 8.1 of the General Provisions must have coverage limits of not less than \$2,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence and \$4,000,000.00 aggregate.

12.	<b>Contractor Vehicle Liability Insurance.</b> The Vehicle Liability Policy described in Section 8.2 of the General Provisions must have coverage limits of not less than <b>\$1,000,000.00</b> combined single limit per occurrence and <b>\$1,000,000.00</b> aggregate.
13.	<u>Contractor Builder's All-Risk Insurance</u> . Section 8.4 of the General Provisions shall:
	<ul><li>☑ be in effect and apply to the Contract.</li><li>☐ NOT be in effect or apply to the Contract.</li></ul>
14.	<u>Subcontractor General Liability Insurance</u> . Each subcontractor must have general liability insurance in effect as provided in Part 8 of the General Provisions, with coverage limits of not less than <b>\$2,000,000.00</b> combined single limit per occurrence and <b>\$4,000,000.00</b> aggregate.
15.	<u>Subcontractor Vehicle Liability Insurance</u> . Each subcontractor must have vehicle liability insurance in effect as provided in Part 8 of the General Provisions, with coverage limits of not less than <b>\$1,000,000.00</b> combined single limit per occurrence and <b>\$1,000,000.00</b> aggregate.
16.	<u>Preconstruction Conference</u> . The District will:
	<ul> <li>schedule and conduct a mandatory preconstruction conference for purposes of describing labor-law requirements.</li> <li>NOT schedule and conduct a mandatory preconstruction conference for purposes of describing labor-law requirements.</li> </ul>
17.	<u>DVBE Participation</u> . With respect to the DVBE requirements set forth in Section 9 of the Instructions for Bidders and Section 11.5 of the General Provisions, the Contractor is:
	<ul><li>☒ Required to comply with such requirements.</li><li>☐ NOT Required to comply with such requirements.</li></ul>
	<u><b>DVBE Advertising</b></u> . If the Contractor is required to comply with DVBE requirements set forth in Section 9 of the Instructions for Bidders and Section 11.5 of the General Provisions, the District:
	<ul><li>□ Will advertise for DVBE services.</li><li>☑ WILL NOT advertise for DVBE services.</li></ul>
18.	<u>Sole Source Items</u> . The District Board has found that, for reasons authorized pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 3400, the equipment, materials, and/or other things described in this Section are specified as sole-source items (each a "Sole Source Item") and the Contractor must provide the exact Sole Source Item specified, not an "equal" or substitute item. The Sole Source Items include: <i>none included</i>
19.	<b>Retention</b> . The District has found in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 7201 that

Retention shall equal five percent (5%).

the Project is not substantially complex. Based on the foregoing the District has determined that

## **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

### PART 1. ADMINISTRATIVE.

- **Section 1.1 Definitions.** Each capitalized term that is defined in any of the Contract Documents shall have such meaning for purposes of all of the Contract Documents, despite not being defined in any other of the Contract Documents.
- **Section 1.2 Authority of District Representative.** The District Representative shall have the authority for general supervision and control of the Work and the Project. The District Representative has the authority to determine the amount, quality, acceptability and fitness of all parts of the Work, and to decide all questions pertaining to the Work, except to the extent that the Architect/Consultant is responsible for answering such questions. The District Representative shall have authority to stop any or all of the Work whenever, in the District Representative's opinion, the Project or the Work is not being executed in accordance with applicable requirements or in a proper manner.
- **Section 1.3 District's Inspector.** The District may contract with a DSA-approved inspector and one or more specialty inspectors (each an "Inspector") to observe and review some or all of the Work, and who will act as representatives of the District. Such observation and review by any Inspector shall not, in any way, relieve the Contractor from responsibility for full compliance with all of the terms and conditions of the Contract, nor be construed to lessen to any degree the Contractor's responsibility for providing efficient and capable supervision as required herein. The Inspectors are not authorized to make changes in the drawings or specifications, and no observation, review, or approval of work and/or methods by any Inspector shall be deemed or construed to relieve the Contractor of responsibility for the correction of any subsequently discovered defects.
- Section 1.4 Extra Services of District Representative or Inspector. The Contractor and/or its surety, if applicable, shall reimburse the District in the event the District incurs any costs or expenses for services of the District Representative, an Inspector and/or the Architect/Consultant in connection with: (i) enforcement of any guaranty or warranty for any portion of the Work; (ii) litigation related to or arising out of the Contract or the Work; (iii) correction of defects or poor quality workmanship in the Work; and/or (iv) completion of the Work by the surety or, if applicable, the District. The Contractor or its surety, if applicable, shall reimburse any such amounts to the District with reasonable promptness, but in no event later than sixty days after request from the District.
- Section 1.5 Separate Contracts. The District reserves the right to award any other contract(s) in connection with the Project for work and/or services not included in the Contractor's scope of work, and the work to be completed pursuant to such contract(s) may proceed simultaneously with the execution of the Work by the Contractor. The Contractor shall coordinate its operations with those of all other contractors on the Project. The Contractor shall cooperate with the District and other contractors with respect to all aspects of the overall work necessary to complete the Project, including storage of equipment and materials. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall remain informed of the progress and the detail work of other contractors and shall immediately notify the District Representative of any reasonably apparent lack of progress or defective workmanship on the part of other contractors, as such delay or such defective workmanship may interfere with the completion of the Work. Failure of the Contractor to remain informed of the progress of work on the Project and/or

failure to give notice of any reasonably apparent lack of progress or defective workmanship by others shall be deemed to be acceptance by the Contractor of that work as being satisfactory for proper coordination with the Work and to be a waiver by the Contractor of any delays arising from that work by others.

**Section 1.6 Ownership of Contract Documents.** All copies of any Contract Documents, including Plans and Specifications, for the Work and the Project are and shall remain the property of the District. The Contractor shall not use or allow the use of the Contract Documents or any portion or provision thereof in connection with any work other than the Work. With the exception of one set of the signed Contract and other Contract Documents to be retained in the Contractor's records if desired by the Contractor, all copies of all Contract Documents are to be returned to the District upon completion and acceptance of the Work.

### PART 2. CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE.

- **Section 2.1 Independent Contractor Status.** The Contractor shall, for all purposes of the Contract, be deemed to be an independent contractor. The Contractor shall not be deemed or construed to be an officer, employee, agent, consultant or representative of the District for any purpose related to the Work or the Project, except to the extent expressly authorized in writing by the District.
- Section 2.2 Standard of Performance. The Contractor represents and warrants that it has the professional skill, knowledge, and experience necessary to perform and complete the Work within the time required pursuant to the Contract. The Contractor shall apply such skill, knowledge and experience in the completion of the Project, at a minimum level at least equal to that expected generally of professionals employed in construction of public schools within the State. The Contractor shall perform and complete the Work in accordance with standards not less than established by applicable laws, rules and regulations, industry and trade association standards, manufacturers' recommendations, and, if any, community or area standards. The Contractor represents and warrants that all of its employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill, knowledge, and experience to perform the Work that will be assigned to them.
- **Section 2.3 Licenses.** The Contractor represents and warrants that it currently has, and that it shall maintain until completion and acceptance of the Project, all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature as are legally required to permit the Contractor to perform the Work required pursuant to the Contract and to complete the Project.
- Section 2.4 Solicitation of Contract. The Contractor hereby represents and warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor or its subcontractor(s), to solicit or secure the Contract on behalf of the Contractor. The Contractor also hereby represents and warrants that it has not paid, and has not agreed to pay, any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor or its subcontractor(s), any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration that is or was contingent upon the award of the Contract to the Contractor. Breach or violation of these representations and warranties shall result in the District having the right to terminate the Contract without further obligation or liability to the Contractor.

**Section 2.5 Conflict of Interest.** The Contractor represents and warrants that, for the term of the Contract, it shall not accept, encourage or solicit from any District Board member, officer or employee of the District any funds or act(s) that may result in a direct financial interest in the Contract or any present or anticipated material benefit arising from the Contract.

Section 2.6 **Project Records.** The Contractor shall maintain all documents, books, papers, accounting records, computer files, and other information related to the Project and performance of the Work ("Project Records"), including, but not limited to, the Contract, the Plans and Specifications, Change Orders, submittals, cut-sheets, requests for information, daily reports, correspondence, permits, insurance policies, Certificates of Insurance, testing and inspection reports, the costs of administering the Contract, and safety records. The Contractor shall keep such accurate and comprehensive Project Records as are: (i) necessary for proper administration and performance of the Work; and (ii) required by law or the Contract. All Project Records, as applicable, shall be maintained in accordance with generally-accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Code Section 8546.7, the State has the right to examine, review, audit and/or copy the Project Records during the three-year period following final payment to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract. In addition, the District, DSA, SAB and OPSC each hereby has the right to examine, review, audit and/or copy the Project Records during the four-year period following final payment to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract. Therefore, the Contractor shall make the Project Records available at its offices at all reasonable times during the performance of the Work and for four years from the date of final completion or filing of a Notice of Completion for the Project, whichever is later. However, if any audit is commenced within such four-year period, the Contractor shall make the Project Records available at all reasonable times until proceedings related to such audit are complete and all statutes of limitation related thereto have expired. In the event the District notifies the Contractor that federal funds have been used in connection with the Project, the Contractor shall retain and make available the Project Records for such longer period as may be required by federal law.

Section 2.7 Damages Incurred by District Pursuant to Other Contracts. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, if the District is required, pursuant to any other contract entered into by the District in connection with the Project, to pay any damages (whether liquidated pursuant to such other contract or otherwise) and/or costs (whether fixed by a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise), and the District would not have been responsible for such damages and/or costs but for an act or omission for which the Contractor is responsible, then the District may seek indemnification from the Contractor pursuant to Part 8 of these General Provisions and/or may pursue such other remedies as are permitted by law and/or the Contract.

#### PART 3. EMPLOYEES AND SUBCONTRACTORS.

**Section 3.1 Job Superintendent.** The Contractor shall have present on the Project Site at all times during the course of the Work an experienced and competent superintendent and any necessary assistants, all satisfactory to the District, who shall supervise the Work and the Contractor's employees and subcontractors on the Project. The job superintendent shall not be changed except with the written consent of the District, unless the Contractor determines that the job superintendent's performance is unsatisfactory or in the event the job superintendent is no longer employed by the Contractor. If the District determines that the performance of any job superintendent or assistant is not, for any reason,

not satisfactory, the Contractor must promptly replace the job superintendent or assistant with someone reasonably acceptable to the District. The Contractor shall not thereafter suffer or permit any such person to perform any of the Work or to be present on or at the Project Site. The job superintendent shall represent the Contractor and all instructions given to the job superintendent shall be as binding on the Contractor as if given to the owner(s) or other primary representative(s) of the Contractor. Upon request of the District, the Contractor shall confirm in writing to the District any oral instructions given to the Contractor through its job superintendent.

Section 3.2 **Contractor's Employees.** The employees of the Contractor shall at all times be under the Contractor's exclusive direction and control on the Project. The Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due to such personnel in connection with their performance of the Work, as required by law. Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, federal and state income tax withholdings, unemployment insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. The Contractor shall employ only competent workers for execution of the Work and shall not employ any person who is unfit or unskilled in the work assigned to him or her. The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its employees and any and all subcontractors' employees performing any portions of the Work. The Contractor shall supervise and control its employees and all subcontractors' employees performing any portions of the Work to ensure adequate performance and discipline. The Contractor shall immediately remove from the Project and Project Site any person, regardless of whether employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor, who is determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, or a threat to the safety of persons or the Work, or who fails or refuses to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the District. The Contractor shall not thereafter suffer or permit any such person to perform any of the Work or to be present on or at the Project Site.

**Section 3.3 Prohibition Against Unlawful Discrimination.** The Contractor represents and warrants that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate in violation of any applicable federal, State, or other law, rule, regulation, or governmental requirement, including, but not limited to discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment on account of such person's race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or age. The Contractor must apply such policy of non-discrimination in connection with all activities related to initial employment, promotion, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination of Contractor's employees or any subcontractors.

with all provisions of the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act." The Contractor shall comply with all provisions of the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act" set forth at Public Contract Code Section 4100 et seq. The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the Work except as indicated in its Bid Form. If the Contractor failed in its Bid Form to identify a subcontractor for any portion of the Work in excess of one-half of one percent of its total Bid, or if the Contractor identified more than one subcontractor for the same portion of work to be performed under the Contract, the Contractor agrees that it is fully qualified to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, that portion of the Work with its own forces, not by using any subcontractor(s).

**Section 3.5 Responsibility for Subcontractors.** The Contractor shall be responsible for any and all acts, errors and omissions of its subcontractors performing any work or services in connection with the Project. The Contractor shall also be responsible for ensuring that all portions of the Work

performed by its subcontractors conform with all requirements of the Contract Documents and applicable law. The Contractor shall immediately remove from the Project and Project Site any subcontractor that the District determines is uncooperative, incompetent, or a threat to the safety of persons or the Work, or that fails or refuses to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the District. The Contractor shall not thereafter suffer or permit any such subcontractor or any of its employees to perform any of the Work or to be present on or at the Project Site.

**Section 3.6 Subcontractor Insurance.** The Contractor shall ensure and verify that its subcontractors obtain and maintain all necessary liability and other insurance as required pursuant to the Contract Documents and/or by law.

### Section 3.7 Procedures to Prevent Contact with Students.

**Subsection 3.7.1 Significance of Requirements.** This Section shall be applicable to the Contract if so specified in the Special Provisions. If applicable, the District has determined that persons assigned to the Work or who otherwise will be present at, on or in the vicinity of the Project Site on account of the Work may have more than "limited contact" with minor-aged students.

**Subsection 3.7.2 Employee Background Checks.** The Contractor, consistent with Education Code Section 45125.1, shall require and be responsible for ensuring that each person who will be at, on or in the vicinity of the Project Site on account of the Work shall comply with all California Department of Justice guidelines and requirements relating to fingerprinting and criminal-history background checks. The Contractor shall certify in writing to the District, using the "Certification Regarding Employee Background Checks" form, which is one of the Required Contract Forms, that no person assigned to the Work or who otherwise will be present at or on the Project Site has been convicted of any serious or violent felonies (as described in Education Code Section 45122.1). The Contractor must attach to the executed Employee Background Check Certification form a list of all persons to whom the certification applies. The Contractor shall prohibit and prevent each and every person who will be at, on or in the vicinity of the Project Site on account of the Work (including not only all persons assigned to the Work directly by the Contractor, but also all persons assigned to the Work by any subcontractor, materialman, or other person or entity that furnishes any labor, materials, services, goods or other things in connection with the Work) from being present at, on or in the vicinity of the Project Site unless and until the Contractor provides the required certification including such person to the District.

Subsection 3.7.3 Responsibility for Subcontractor Compliance. The Contractor shall require in each of its subcontracts that, if the subcontractor will assign any person to the Work or otherwise will cause or permit any person to be present at or on the Project Site, the subcontractor must cooperate in regard to, and fully comply with, the requirements of this Section 3.7. The Contractor may on that basis delegate responsibility for compliance with this Section 3.7 to any such subcontractor; however, the Contractor at all times retains full responsibility and/or liability for such compliance or lack thereof.

**Subsection 3.7.4** Alternatives to Background Checks. Upon request of the Contractor with respect to any particular situation and/or duration of time, the District in its sole discretion may consent to the Contractor implementing measures intended to protect the District's minor-aged students, which measures would be in lieu of the Contractor complying with Subsections 3.7.2 and 3.7.3

herein. Subject to District approval, such alternative measures might include, but are not necessarily limited to: (i) installing a physical barrier to limit contact between students and the employees and other representatives of the Contractor, subcontractors, and others present on or at the Project Site on account of the Work; (ii) providing for the continuous supervision and monitoring of such employees, representatives and others by an employee of the Contractor who has received fingerprint clearance from the California Department of Justice; or (iii) providing for the surveillance of such employees, representatives and others by a District employee. The Contractor must implement any such approved alternative measures at no additional cost to the District, and the Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with such alternative measures by or with respect to all persons assigned to the Work or who otherwise will be present at, on or in the vicinity of the Project Site on account of the Work.

Subsection 3.7.5 Consequences of Non-Compliance with Requirements. Due to the possible adverse consequences of contact with students and other minor-aged individuals, any failure by the Contractor to ensure compliance with the requirements of this Section 3.7 shall be deemed and construed to constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the District, in its sole discretion, may immediately terminate the Contract without any further compensation to Contractor and/or pursue all other rights and remedies it may have against the Contractor pursuant to law or the Contract.

### PART 4. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

Section 4.1 Errors, Inconsistencies, and/or Omissions in Contract Documents. The Contractor shall carefully study and compare all of the Contract Documents and requirements therein, and be adequately familiar with the same as the Work commences and progresses. The Contractor shall immediately, upon discovery, inform the District Representative in writing of any error, inconsistency, omission, or other discrepancy in the Contract Documents. The District will notify the Architect/Consultant for the Project ("Architect/Consultant") of any such error, inconsistency, omission, or discrepancy. The Architect/Consultant shall promptly investigate and/or verify the same. Unless and until authorized by the District, any of the Work affected by any such error, inconsistency, or omission that is performed by Contractor shall be at the Contractor's risk and/or cost.

**Section 4.2 Conflict Between Drawings and Specifications.** In the event of any conflict between the requirements of the Drawings contained in the Plans and Specifications and the specifications set forth in the Contract Documents, the Drawings shall govern with respect to matters of quantity, and the Specifications shall govern with respect to matters of quality. In the event of any conflict within such Drawings involving quantities, or within such Specifications involving qualities, the Contractor shall furnish the greater quantity and/or the higher quality, unless otherwise directed by the District Representative and/or Architect/Consultant.

**Section 4.3 Titles and Headings in Contract Documents.** The titles and/or headings of the sections, divisions and paragraphs set forth in the technical specifications, if any, are provided for convenience only and shall not be deemed or construed as a correct or complete segregation of the several units of material and labor. No responsibility, either direct or implied, will be assumed by the District for errors, omissions or duplications by the Contractor or its subcontractors, resulting from

actual or alleged error in the arrangement or order of the provisions set forth in the Contract Documents.

## Section 4.4 Shop Drawings (if applicable).

Subsection 4.4.1 Advance Approval Required. The Contractor must, in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section, submit for the approval of the Architect/Consultant all shop and setting drawings, samples, and other submittals (each a "Shop Drawing") required pursuant to the Contract Documents or that are requested by the Architect/Consultant. If the Contractor completes any portion of the Work included in or affected by the subject matter of any Shop Drawing prior to receipt of the Architect/Consultant's approval of such Shop Drawing, all such Work shall be at Contractor's own risk.

**Subsection 4.4.2** Copies Required. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, the Contractor must submit six sets of all Shop Drawings, together with a letter of transmittal listing the numbers and dates of the Shop Drawings and/or other information submitted to the Architect/Consultant. Any such Shop Drawings shall be complete in every respect and, where more than a single page, bound in sets.

**Subsection 4.4.3 Timely Submittal.** The Contractor must submit each and all Shop Drawings in a timely manner, with adequate consideration given to construction scheduling requirements so as to allow ample time for checking, correcting, resubmitting, and rechecking of any Shop Drawing by the Architect/Consultant.

Subsection 4.4.4 Review and Approval in Advance by the Contractor. The Contractor must review each Shop Drawing prior to submittal to the Architect/Consultant, including, without limitation, for conformance with all requirements of the Contract Documents. All Shop Drawings submitted for approval by the Architect/Consultant must be marked with the name of the Project, numbered consecutively, and bear the stamp of approval of the Contractor as evidence that the Contractor has reviewed and approved the Shop Drawings. The Architect/Consultant will not accept or review Shop Drawings that do not bear the Contractor's stamp of approval and shall return such Shop Drawings to the Contractor for re-submission.

Subsection 4.4.5 Identifying Variations from Contract Requirements. If, for any reason, any Shop Drawing varies from the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor must specifically identify the variation, by "clouding" or other method that makes the variation apparent, and the Contractor must explain such variation in the letter of transmittal. Absent the Contractor so identifying and explaining a variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not be relieved of the responsibility for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, regardless of the fact that the Architect/Consultant may have approved the applicable Shop Drawing.

Subsection 4.4.6 Approval of Variations from Contract Requirements. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with Subsection 4.4.5, above, the Architect/Consultant may approve any Shop Drawing that varies from the requirements of the Contract Documents if such variation: (i) does not require a change in the Contract Amount or time for performance of the Work; (ii) does not affect the

longevity, use or maintenance of the completed Work; and (iii) approval would be in the District's best interests.

## Subsection 4.4.7 Interpretation of Architect/Consultant Approval.

Architect/Consultant approval of Shop Drawings shall be deemed a "general" approval and, except as otherwise provided in Subsection 4.4.6, above, shall not be construed: (i) to permit any variation between the Work as performed and the requirements of the Contract Documents; (ii) to relieve the Contractor of responsibility for any error(s) that may exist in the details, dimensions, or other information set forth in any Shop Drawing; or (iii) as approval of variations between the Work as performed and details or instructions for the Work previously provided to the Contractor by the District Representative.

**Section 4.5** Interpretation of Documents. The District Representative or Architect/Consultant shall resolve all questions related to the interpretation of the Contract Documents or the workmanship, scope, value or other matters related to the Work performed or to be performed thereunder, and the adjustment determined by Architect/Consultant, if any, shall be conclusive subject to the approval of the District.

### PART 5. WORK AND SITE CONDITIONS.

**Section 5.1 Work Permits and Licenses.** The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, all permits and licenses of a temporary nature necessary for the performance of the Work, including, but not limited to, any required business licenses, construction permit(s), Cal-OSHA safety-related permits, and/or storm water permit(s) if applicable. The Contractor shall procure and pay for all licenses required in its trade classification by any city, county, or the State, except for those specified in Section 5.2 of these General Provisions.

**Section 5.2 Building Permits and Utility Connections.** Notwithstanding Section 5.1 of these General Provisions, the District shall procure and pay for all building permits required by local building officials and for connection to public utilities, to the extent required by law or obtained by the District in its discretion.

Master Schedule, the Contractor shall submit to the District Representative for review a schedule for completion of the Work and all major components thereof, which shall include the "critical path" for such Work and shall be consistent with the Work of any other contractors on the Project and the Master Schedule. The District Representative may reject the construction schedule as unreasonable or inconsistent with the Master Schedule, in which case the Contractor shall revise and resubmit the construction schedule. Upon acceptance of the construction schedule by the District Representative, the construction schedule shall be incorporated into the Master Schedule. The Contractor shall ensure that its employees and subcontractors are aware of and comply with the approved Master Schedule. Acceptance of a construction schedule by the District Representative shall not be construed as verifying or approving the logic or feasibility of the schedule. The Contractor shall at all times comply with the Master Schedule. In the event the Work falls behind schedule, the Contractor shall, within twenty-four hours of any request by the District, prepare and provide to the District a recovery schedule indicating

the actions to be taken and the Work to be performed in order to bring the actual work performed into compliance with schedule requirements. Upon approval of the recovery schedule by the District, the Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with the recovery schedule to ensure conformance with the Master Schedule. Any float in the Master Schedule shall be for the benefit of the Project, as determined by the District Representative, not for the benefit of the Contractor, any other prime contractor, or any of their subcontractors.

Section 5.4 Manpower Requirements. At any time during the period for completion of the Work, the District may determine in its reasonable discretion that the Contractor or any of its subcontractors is not employing sufficient manpower on the Work to reasonably complete the Work or any component thereof within the scheduled amount of time. In such event, within forty-eight hours of any request by the District, the Contractor shall provide such additional manpower, or shall ensure that the subcontractor provides such additional manpower, as the District determines is necessary to ensure completion of the Work in a timely manner. Any failure by the Contractor or subcontractor upon the District's request to provide such additional manpower as is required by the District shall constitute grounds for termination of the Contractor and/or the subcontractor. As an alternative to termination, the District, in its sole discretion, may determine to supplement the workforce of the Contractor or the subcontractor in order to ensure timely completion of the Work, and the cost thereof shall be deducted from amounts due to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract, and no such action by the District shall be deemed or construed to constitute interference by the District with the Contract or the Contractor's right to perform the Work.

Section 5.5 Liquidated Damages. Time is of the essence with respect to the Contract and completion of the Work. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the District will suffer damages if Contractor does not complete the Work within the time provided pursuant to the Contract. Because it is impractical and infeasible to determine the actual amount of damages the District will incur, in accordance with Government Code Section 53069.85, the Contractor shall pay to the District liquidated damages at the rate specified in the Special Provisions for each and every calendar day or portion thereof if not a full day, that the Work remains uncompleted and not accepted by the District after the time provided pursuant to the Contract, as such time may be modified in accordance with the Contract ("Liquidated Damages"). Liquidated Damages shall constitute compensation to the District for Contractor's delay or delay caused by its subcontractors, suppliers, et cetera, in completion of the Work and shall not be construed as a penalty or forfeiture of any other right or remedy under the Contract or law. In the event the Contractor fails to pay any such Liquidated Damages, the District may deduct such amount(s) from any payments due (or that may become due) to Contractor pursuant to the Contract. Nothing in this Section shall be deemed or construed to preclude the District from recovering other or additional damages, as provided by the Contract or applicable law, attributable to any breach or default by the Contractor of its obligations pursuant to the Contract.

**Section 5.6 Extension of Time.** Subject to the other provisions of this Section, District shall extend the time for completion of the Work, by such number of days determined by the District in its reasonable discretion, in the event Contractor's progress on the Work is delayed as a result of: (i) an unreasonable act or omission of the District, not contemplated by the District and the Contractor; (ii) an act or omission of any other prime contractor on the Project not consistent with the Contract Documents; (iii) Changes in the Work required by the District for reasons other than those caused by, or the fault of, the Contractor; (iv) strike or lockout not instigated by the Contractor or an affected

subcontractor; (v) unusual and severe interruption in interstate or intrastate, but not local or regional, transportation; (vi) earthquake, flood or other unavoidable casualty that is not the fault of Contractor or a result of Contractor's actions or work; or (vii) any other cause determined by the District to justify an extension of time. As a condition precedent to the District's obligation to grant any such extension of time, the Contractor must provide written notice of the delay to the District within five calendar days of when the delay commenced. No extension of time shall be granted for a delay occurring more than five days prior to when the notice of delay is submitted in writing to the District. In the case of a continuing cause of delay, only one notice shall be necessary, but the Contractor must apprise the District on a regular basis (not less than once per week) as to the status of the delay and, also, at such time as the cause of the delay has been resolved and the affected portion of the Work has resumed. The purpose of the notice requirements of this Section are to ensure that the District has an opportunity at the earliest possible time to mitigate and resolve delays in the Project.

**Section 5.7 Workmanship and Materials.** The Contractor shall employ nothing less than good quality workmanship in performing the Work. All materials, equipment and other items incorporated into the Work shall be of good quality and, unless specified otherwise, shall be new. The Contractor shall, upon request, provide satisfactory evidence as to the type and quality of materials used in connection with the Work. If the Contractor determines that the materials delivered to the Project Site do not represent a good quality product, it shall advise the District Representative, and shall remedy the deficient quality as quickly as possible with the shortest delay, if any, to the Work on the Project, unless otherwise instructed by the District Representative.

Section 5.8 **Substitutions of Materials and Equipment.** The Contractor shall use and/or incorporate into the Work on the Project all materials and equipment as are specified in the Contract Documents, except upon approval by the District Representative or Architect/Consultant of the substitution of "equal" materials or equipment. No substitutions shall be accepted unless and until the Contractor requests and receives permission in writing from the District Representative or Architect/Consultant. All requests for substitution shall be made concurrently to the District, the District Representative and the Architect/Consultant. The Contractor must have submitted any requests for substitution and all information in substantiation of such request not later than twenty-four hours after the date and time scheduled for opening of Bids. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor may submit a request for substitution after such deadline in the event a Specified Item has become commercially unavailable, i.e., is no longer manufactured or is available only for a manifestly unreasonable price. In connection with any such request, the Contractor shall present complete details of the "equal" item, with specific explanations of the characteristics of the details that differ from the specifications. The Contractor must expressly describe how a substitute item will differ from the Specified Item, including without limitation, compliance with applicable building and other codes, and the Contractor shall to that extent be responsible for compliance with all specifications, codes, et cetera, regardless of any District or Architect/Consultant approval of the substitution request. The District Representative and/or Architect/Consultant for the Project shall investigate the characteristics of the proposed "equal" item and the merits of the proposed substitution, and shall notify the Contractor of the determination. The determination of the District Representative or Architect/Consultant as to whether a proposed substitute material, equipment, or other item is "equal" shall be final.

**Section 5.9 Contractor's Title to Materials.** Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor on the Project shall purchase materials, equipment, supplies or other items for use on, or incorporation

into, the Work subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale or other agreement pursuant to which an interest is retained by the seller. The Contractor represents and warrants that it shall have good, free and clear title to all materials, equipment, supplies, or other items for which the Contractor accepts any payment from the District.

**Section 5.10 Tests and Inspections.** Materials, fabrication, and erection shall be tested and inspected as required by Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations and when required by the District Representative or Inspector. The cost of all such tests and inspections shall be paid by the District, except that the Contractor shall reimburse the District for (or compensation to the Contractor shall be reduced by an amount equal to) the costs of retests or re-inspections of Construction, materials, equipment and other components of the Work that prove to be defective, inadequate, or inconsistent with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

**Section 5.11 Materials Testing.** The Contractor shall deliver to the District Representative upon request, without charge to the District, and properly marked for identification purposes, all material test samples or specimens that are required pursuant to the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall pay all costs incurred in preparing, wrapping, protecting, transporting and/or mailing of required samples or specimens.

Section 5.12 Inspection of Manufactured Items. The Contractor must ensure that the District shall at all reasonable times have access to all places where materials, equipment, machinery, or other items for incorporation into the Work are being manufactured, produced, or fabricated for use on or incorporation into the Project. The District shall be permitted such access as will allow a determination regarding whether such materials, equipment, machinery or other items are being manufactured in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall, upon request, provide the District Representative with access to all invoices, bills of lading, et cetera, and shall provide scales for, and/or other equipment and assistance with, weighing, measuring, or otherwise evaluating any of the materials.

**Section 5.13 Surveys.** The District, if reasonably required, will establish the boundary lines of the Project Site and all easements thereon. The Contractor shall preserve all existing bench marks and property or survey stakes, markers, or monuments as they exist in the field. The Contractor shall be responsible for the disturbance, removal or covering of any such bench marks, stakes, markers or monuments, and shall reimburse to the District (or compensation to the Contractor shall be reduced by the amount of) the actual cost and expenses incurred in restoring or replacing the same. Only a licensed Land Surveyor or registered Civil Engineer of the State shall be employed for any revision to the established boundary lines and easements.

**Section 5.14** Access to Work. The District, including, without limitation, the Architect/Consultant, District Representative and Inspector, shall at all times and for any purpose have unrestricted access to the Work on the Project, including any areas used by the Contractor or its subcontractor(s). Each public authority with jurisdiction over the Project shall at all times have unrestricted access to the Work on the Project, including any areas used by the Contractor or its subcontractor(s), for purposes within that public authority's jurisdiction. The Contractor shall not impede or frustrate any access to or inspection of the Work, including inspection of the materials and the workmanship used in connection with the Work. The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to

facilitate any such access or inspection of the Work, including providing any equipment or other accommodations necessary or convenient for such access or inspection.

Section 5.15 Testing and Inspection of Work. Testing and inspection of portions or elements of the Work, or of materials, equipment or other items to be incorporated into the Work, will be required pursuant to the Contract Documents, Inspector's instructions, applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, or by public authorities. The Contractor shall give the Inspector written notice of its readiness for any such testing or inspection at least forty-eight hours prior to when the inspection is scheduled to occur. If the inspection is to be conducted by a public authority or person other than the Inspector, the notice to the Inspector shall also specify the date and time at which such inspection is to occur. If the Contractor, without prior approval, covers or renders inaccessible the portion or element of the Work, or the material, equipment or other item, that is to be tested or inspected, the Contractor, at its own expense and upon request of the Inspector, shall remove or demolish all portions of the Work as are necessary to facilitate such testing or inspection. The Contractor must give notice of any cancellation of a scheduled inspection at least twenty-four hours prior to when the inspection is scheduled to occur.

**Section 5.16 Protection of Work.** The Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall protect the Work and any portions of the Project affected thereby from harm and are responsible under all circumstances for the conditions thereof until final acceptance of the Project by the District. The Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall protect adjacent property from injury or damage arising out of Contractor's performance of the Work on the Project and shall repair or pay the cost of repairing any such damage or injury that occurs.

**Section 5.17 Protection of Project Site.** The Contractor shall protect all structures, walks, pipelines, utilities, trees, shrubbery, furniture, and all other items on and in the vicinity of the Project Site that may possibly be damaged or otherwise adversely affected during the performance of the Work.

**Section 5.18 Damages to Other Contractors.** In the event any other contractor or subcontractor working on the Project incurs damage(s) as a result of any act or omission of the Contractor or its subcontractor(s) that is unreasonable or not consistent with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall make good-faith efforts to effect a settlement with the other contractor. If no such settlement is reached, and if any party commences an action or other proceeding against the District related thereto, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District in accordance with Section 8.15 of these General Provisions.

Section 5.19 Cleanup and Storage. The Contractor shall ensure that the area of the Project Site in which the Work occurs is at all times, including nights and weekends, free of loose or accessible waste, materials, tools, and equipment. The Contractor shall maintain the area of the Work and the Project, including grounds and sidewalks, in a safe, neat, and clean manner that will cause the least inconvenience to the District and, as applicable, the general public, school staff, and students. The Contractor shall comply with all instructions from the District Representative with respect to conditions at the Project Site, including, without limitation, instructions regarding removal of rubbish and debris generated by, and any unnecessary materials, tools, equipment or temporary structures owned or used by, the Contractor or its subcontractors. In the event the Contractor fails to comply with any such instruction, the District Representative may arrange for removal and the Contractor shall pay to the

District (or the Contractor's compensation shall be reduced by the amount of) the actual costs of such removal. Storage of materials on the Project Site shall be under the supervision of the District Representative, but at the expense, if any, of the Contractor.

Section 5.20 **Safety.** Contractor shall perform and maintain the Work so as to avoid injury or damage to any person, including, without limitation, District employees, students, visitors and others, or to any property. In carrying out the Work, the Contractor and its employees and subcontractors shall at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, State and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the Work and the conditions under which the Work is to be performed. Required safety precautions may include, but are not necessarily limited to: (i) adequate life protection and lifesaving equipment; (ii) adequate illumination for underground and night operations; (iii) instructions in accident prevention for all employees, such as machinery guards, safe walkways, scaffolds, ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, fall protection and other safety devices; (iv) equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (v) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. The Contractor shall take steps to ensure compliance with all safety measures applicable in particular operations or kinds of work, including sufficient safeguards, such as railings, temporary walks, lights, et cetera, as are necessary to prevent injuries or damage to any person or property. Contractor shall be responsible in the event of any such injury or damage resulted from any unsafe or unprotected condition on the Project that the Contractor is hereby required to protect against. The Contractor shall conduct such clean-ups of the area of the Work, including grounds and sidewalks, as are necessary to maintain the safety of the area of the Work, but in any event not less than once daily. In the event of an emergency in which life or property are endangered, the Contractor shall take all reasonable actions to safeguard such life or property. The Contractor shall require that the job superintendent or others immediately call "911" each time a medical emergency occurs on or at the Project Site.

Section 5.21 Loss and Damage. Until such time as the Work is fully complete and accepted by the District, the Contractor shall be responsible for all losses and/or repair of all damages that may arise from or be a result of: (i) the nature of the Work agreed to herein; (ii) the action of the elements or environment; or (iii) any unforeseen difficulties that may arise or be encountered during the process of completing the Work. However, provided that the Work has been constructed in strict accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall only be responsible for damage proximately caused by Acts of God (as defined in Public Contract Code Section 7105) up to a maximum of five percent of the Contract Amount. In the event any such Act of God proximately causes damages in excess of five percent of the Contract Amount, the District may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Contract effective three days following written notice to Contractor.

**Section 5.22 Regional Notification Center.** If the Work involves any trenching, boring, tunneling, digging or other excavation, the Contractor shall be solely responsible and liable for compliance with all applicable requirements of Government Code Sections 4216 through 4216.9, and with all requirements of the Contractors State License Board relating to such Government Code provisions. The Contractor must, as required, obtain from the Regional Notification Center an Underground Service Alert identification number and must provide such identification number to the District. Prior to it expiring, the Contractor must contact the Regional Notification Center for any necessary revalidation of the identification number.

Section 5.23 Utility Removal, Relocation and Protection. In accordance with Government Code Section 4215, the District shall compensate the Contractor if the Plans and Specifications fail to identify any utility main- and trunk-lines on the Project Site and such failure results in additional costs to the Contractor related to: (i) locating and repairing damage to underground utility facilities not caused by the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care; (ii) removing or relocating underground utility facilities not indicated in the Plans and Specifications with reasonable accuracy; and (iii) equipment necessarily idled during such work. The Contractor shall not be assessed Liquidated Damages for the delay caused by the failure of District or the owner of the utility to provide for removal or relocation of such utility facilities. The Contractor shall immediately provide written notice to the District if, during the course of the Work, the Contractor discovers utility facilities not identified in the Plans and Specifications.

**Section 5.24 Trench Excavation.** This Section shall apply to the Contract only if the Contract Amount exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars and the Work requires or involves excavation of any trench or trenches five feet or more in depth. The Contractor, in conformance with Labor Code Section 6705 and other applicable law, and prior to any such excavation, shall submit to the District for review and approval a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. The plan must be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer and if the plan varies from the requirements of applicable Cal-Osha Construction Safety Orders, the Contractor must obtain Cal-Osha approval of the plan. Nothing in this Section, and no District or other approval of any plan prepared pursuant to this Section, shall relieve the Contractor of any responsibility, or result in District liability for hazards resulting from excavations performed by the Contractor.

Section 5.25 Subsurface Conditions. In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 7104, if the Work involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below the surface, the Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, provide written notice to the District of any: (i) material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; (ii) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Project Site differing from those indicated by information about the Project Site made available to Bidders prior to the deadline for submitting Bids; or (iii) unknown physical conditions at the Project Site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work of the character provided for in the Contract. The District shall promptly investigate any such reported condition and, if warranted, shall issue a Change Order to the Contractor for any extra work or cost not covered by the Contract. In the event of any dispute between the District and the Contractor related to any such condition, the Contractor shall continue with the Work and shall not be excused from completing the Work within the time required pursuant to the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the Parties.

**Section 5.26 Asbestos or Other Hazardous Materials.** In the event the Contractor encounters on the Project Site any material that Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), any material listed by the federal or State EPA or federal or State health

agencies as a hazardous material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal or State laws, rules or regulations ("Hazardous Material") that has not been rendered harmless, Contractor shall immediately stop all Work in the area affected and report the condition to the District in writing. The Contractor shall resume the Work only if it is determined that no Hazardous Material is present or that such Hazardous Material has been rendered harmless. The District shall not require that the Contractor perform any Work relating to Hazardous Material without the Contractor's consent.

**Section 5.27 Certification Regarding Non-Asbestos-Containing Materials.** Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor shall execute and submit to the District the Non-Asbestos-Containing Materials Certification Form included within the Contract Documents for the Project.

Section 5.28 Notice and Certification Regarding Lead-Containing Materials. Pursuant to the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act (Education Code Section 32240 et seq.) and other applicable law, no lead-containing or lead-based paint, plumbing or solders, or other potential sources of lead contamination, shall be used in connection with the construction of the Project, and only trained and State-certified inspectors/assessors, monitors, designers, supervisors, and workers may provide lead-related construction services. Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor shall execute and submit to the District the Lead-Containing Materials Notice and Certification form for purposes of acknowledging Contractor's awareness and understanding of these requirements.

Section 5.29 Inspection of Completed Work. In addition to any testing and inspection required by the Contract Documents, the Inspector may require special inspection of any portion of the Work already completed as to which there is a reasonable question as to whether it was completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. In such event, the Contractor shall remove or undo all portions of the Work as are necessary to facilitate inspection of the questioned portion of the Work. If the questioned portion of the Work is found not to conform with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay all costs of the re-examination and correction of the Work, including repair or replacement of previously completed Work that was removed or undone to permit the inspection. If the questioned Work is found to conform with the Contract Documents, the District shall pay the cost of the re-examination and any repair or replacement of previously completed Work that was removed or undone to permit the inspection.

Section 5.30 Correction of Work Before Final Payment. The Contractor shall promptly remove from the Project and the Project Site all materials, equipment or other items that, as determined by the Inspector, fail to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, regardless of whether such materials have already been incorporated into the Work. The Contractor shall, at its own expense, promptly replace any such materials, equipment or items with conforming materials, equipment or items, and shall thereafter repair the Work and/or execute the remaining Work in conformance with the Contract Documents. In addition, the Contractor shall bear all costs and expenses of replacing or repairing the work of other contractors or subcontractor(s) that is destroyed or damaged in the course of removing or replacing any non-conforming materials, equipment or other items that were incorporated into the Work. The District shall have no obligation to issue the Final Payment to the Contractor unless and until the Contractor satisfies the requirements of this Section.

**Section 5.31 Use of Completed Portions.** The District shall have the right at any time to take possession of and use any completed or partially completed portions of the Work, regardless of whether

the entire Work is complete. In no event shall such possession and use by the District be construed as, or deemed to be, acceptance by the District of portions of the Work that is not complete or that has not been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. In the event such possession and use delays or increases the cost to the Contractor of completing the remaining Work, the Contractor may submit a claim to the District Representative for additional compensation or extension of time, or both.

#### Section 5.32 Guarantee.

**Subsection 5.32.1 General.** In addition to any manufacturer or other guarantees required by the Contract Documents, the Contractor hereby guarantees that all Work performed pursuant to the Contract shall be of good quality and conform to all requirements of the Contract Documents, and that the Work shall be free from defective, faulty and/or non-conforming workmanship, materials, equipment, and other items. Contractor agrees that it shall repair, replace or correct any such defective, faulty or non-conforming Work that appears or is discovered during the one year period after the date of final acceptance of the Project by the District (or the period of time specified elsewhere in the Contract Documents or in any guarantee or warrantee provided by any manufacturer or supplier of equipment or materials incorporated into the Work, whichever is later). The provisions of this Section shall not be construed to limit the guarantee on items for which the Contract Documents specify a longer guarantee or on items for which the manufacturer provides a longer guarantee period, and the Contractor shall be responsible for any latent defects in the Work for the period applicable to latent acts or omissions specified in Section 7030 of the Business and Professions Code.

Subsection 5.32.2 Performance of Guarantee Work. Within seven days after written notice from the District of any such defect, fault and/or non-conformance, the Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, commence and perform with due diligence all Work necessary to repair, replace or correct such defect, fault and/or non-conformance so that the requirements of the Contract Documents are met. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall immediately upon notice from the District undertake any necessary repair, replacement or correction in the event of an emergency or a dangerous condition, when necessary to prevent an interruption in the District's operations, or when necessary to prevent injuries to persons and/or damage to property.

**Subsection 5.32.3** Collateral Damage. In complying with its guarantee obligation, the Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, repair, replace or correct any portions of the Project (including work of other contractors and subcontractor(s)) damaged by any defect, fault or non-conformance in the Work, or that become damaged in the course of repair, replacement or correction of defective, faulty, or non-conforming Work.

**Subsection 5.32.4 Extension of Guarantee Period.** With respect to any of the Work that is repaired, replaced or corrected during the applicable term of this guarantee, the guarantee and the Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be extended for an additional one-year period, commencing with the date of acceptance of the repaired, replaced, or corrected Work.

**Subsection 5.32.5** Confirmation of Guarantee Work. The Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, perform such tests as the District may require to confirm that any repair, replacement or correction pursuant to this Section complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

**Subsection 5.32.6 Guarantees for Benefit of District.** Any and all warrantees and guarantees of subcontractors, suppliers and manufacturers with respect to any portion of the Work, whether express or implied, are deemed to be obtained by Contractor for the benefit of the District, regardless of whether or not such warrantees and guarantees have been transferred or assigned to the District by separate agreement, and Contractor agrees to enforce such warrantees and guarantees, if necessary, on behalf of the District.

Subsection 5.32.7 Contractor Failure to Perform. In the event the Contractor fails to perform, or fails to timely perform, any necessary repair, replacement or correction to the reasonable satisfaction of the District, the District shall have the right, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, to repair, replace or correct any defective, faulty or non-conforming Work together with any portion of the Project damaged thereby or by the repair, replacement, or correction thereof. The Contractor or, if applicable, its surety, shall reimburse the District for all costs and expenses that the District incurs in connection with any such repair, replacement or correction by the District or in connection with enforcing the provisions of this Section.

### PART 6. CHANGES IN THE WORK.

**Section 6.1 District Instructions.** In giving instructions related to performance of the Work, the Contractor shall comply with instructions of the District Representative related to minor changes in the Work not involving extra cost and not inconsistent with the purpose of the Work, and there shall be no additional compensation to the Contractor on account of such minor changes.

**Section 6.2 District Authority.** For purposes of the Contract, any significant alteration, deviation, or change in the scope, method of performance, nature of materials or price of the Work or the Project, or any other matter materially affecting the performance or nature of the Work or the Project shall be referred to as a "Change in the Work." The District shall have the right to require a Change in the Work, without thereby invalidating the Contract.

Section 6.3 Change Orders. Any request for a Change in the Work that involves an adjustment of the Contract Amount or a modification of the time for performance of the Work or portion thereof shall be set forth in a written order for the Change in the Work (each a "Change Order"). Each Party shall propose Change Orders for Changes in the Work that it requests. Any and all modifications of the time for performance of the Work attributable to a Change in the Work must be set forth in the associated Change Order and not left for later determination. No Change Order shall become effective, and the District shall have no liability related thereto for payment or otherwise, unless and until approved and signed by the District and the Contractor and approved by the District Board. Except as expressly provided in the Change Order, all work pursuant to a Change Order shall be performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract. In the event of an emergency endangering life or property, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor may rely on the District's oral requests for additional work, which if affecting the Contract Amount and/or time for performance of the Work will be adjusted accordingly by the District. The District will provide oral requests for additional work only to the extent the District Board has expressly delegated such authority.

Valuation of Change Orders. The Parties shall determine and set forth in an Section 6.4 applicable Change Order the fair and reasonable value of each Change in the Work, which will be added to or deducted from the amount of the Contract Amount. The Contractor shall, upon request of the District, provide all information required by the District to substantiate the value of a Change in the Work. No time extension shall be granted in conjunction with any Change Order unless the approved Change Order expressly sets forth such adjustment. The valuation of a Change Order shall be determined in one or more of the following ways: (i) by estimate and acceptance in a lump sum amount; (ii) by unit prices specified in the Contract or as agreed to by the Parties; or (iii) by a percentage of Contractor's cost and a fixed fee, in which case the Contractor shall keep detailed records of the net cost of labor and materials. The valuation of each Change Order shall include a reasonable amount for overhead and profit, but in no event shall such overhead and profit exceed an amount equal to ten percent of the total valuation. The District Representative shall certify the amount of each Change Order that does not provide for a fixed lump-sum amount. In the event the Parties are unable to agree on a Change Order valuation method or amount, the Contractor nonetheless shall proceed with any Change in the Work required by the District. In such event, the Contractor shall keep detailed records of the net cost of labor and materials, together with vouchers. Pending final determination of value, payment on account of a Change in the Work shall be made based upon the District Representative's estimate of the value of the Change in the Work, including, if applicable, a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit due to the Contractor.

Section 6.5 **Change Orders Specify Full and Final Compensation.** Except as expressly set forth in any particular Change Order, each Change Order shall be deemed and construed to include all change(s) required pursuant to the Change Order, including, without limitation, any and all extensions of time and overhead, acceleration costs, profit, general conditions costs, expenses, and other direct and indirect costs and expenses of such work and/or changes. In addition, each Change Order shall be deemed and construed to include all necessary adjustments attributable to cumulative impacts of that and any and all preceding Change Orders, whether such impacts relate to scheduling, productivity, or other matters. By signing a Change Order, the Contractor shall be deemed and construed to have waived any and all claims and rights to any adjustments to the Contract Amount and/or time for performance of the Work other than as are set forth in the Change Order, and the Contractor may not thereafter attempt to hold the District responsible for any interference, delay, acceleration, or other effect on the Work and/or additional costs attributable to the change(s) required pursuant to the Change Order. To the extent provided in Section 8.15 of these General Provisions, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the District harmless from any and all claims. Claims by any subcontractor, vendor or consultant of Contractor that are alleged to arise in whole or in part from any Change Order(s), including without limitation, any and all claims for extensions of time and overhead, delays, delay damages, acceleration costs, profit, general conditions costs, expenses, and other direct and indirect costs.

## PART 7. CONTRACTOR COMPENSATION.

**Section 7.1** Application for Payment. The Contractor shall submit to the District Representative, on or before the fifth day of each month, an itemized application for payment for the portion of the Work completed during the prior month ("Progress Payment Application"). The Progress Payment Application shall be in a format approved by the District. The Contractor may call upon the

Inspector for assistance in preparing any Progress Payment Application and, prior to submittal to the District Representative, shall permit the Inspector to review the Progress Payment Application. The Contractor shall certify in the Progress Payment Application that the portion of the Work for which payment is requested has been satisfactorily completed and/or that any materials specified in the Progress Payment Application not already incorporated into the Project are stored where indicated. Each Progress Payment Application must identify: (i) the portion and amount of Work completed since the last Progress Payment Application; and (ii) the portion of the requested payment amount attributable to each subcontractor, material supplier, and other entity that is entitled to a portion of the payment amount. Each Progress Payment Application shall be accompanied by an updated construction schedule illustrating the actual Work completed to date in relation to the approved construction schedule. If there is a discrepancy between the actual Work completed and the Work required pursuant to the construction schedule (i.e., the Work is either ahead of schedule or behind schedule), the Contractor shall include a detailed explanation of such discrepancy with the Progress Payment Application. Payment to the Contractor shall not be deemed to be acceptance, acquiescence or waiver by the District of any of its rights with respect to any such discrepancy or any deficiency in the Work. The Contractor shall support each Progress Payment Application with such information as reasonably will be necessary for the District Representative to verify the requested payment amount. Payment to the Contractor may be delayed if the Contractor fails to submit complete and accurate information in support of its Progress Payment Applications.

Section 7.2 Verification of Payment Application. The District Representative and/or Architect/Consultant shall review each Progress Payment Application and, as soon as practicable, but not later than seven days after receipt of a Progress Payment Application, shall: (i) certify that the Progress Payment Application is correct in all aspects and should be paid by the District; (ii) recommend to the District that it reject the Progress Payment Application, stating the reason(s) why rejection is appropriate; or (iii) require that the Contractor provide additional information that the District Representative reasonably determines is necessary to verify any requested payment amount. In the event the District rejects the Progress Payment Application, the Contractor may resubmit the Progress Payment Application with additional or new information establishing why payment should be made despite the reason(s) set forth in the District's initial rejection.

Progress Payment Application, less any amounts that may be withheld or retained pursuant to the Contract or law, within thirty days of receipt thereof and in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 20104.50. If the District has requested additional information in support of a Progress Payment Application, the time for payment pursuant to that Progress Payment Application shall be extended by the number of days required for the Contractor to provide the requested information but reduced by the number of days the District exceeds the seven-day return requirement described in Section 7.2 of these General Provisions. The District shall pay interest, at the rate set forth in Code of Civil Procedure Section 685.010(a), on any amount not paid within the time required by Public Contract Code Section 20104.50 and the Contract, provided that such amount is not subject to dispute or a request for additional information.

**Section 7.4 Retention.** Unless provided otherwise in the Special Provisions, the District shall retain five percent of the amount to be paid to the Contractor pursuant to each approved Progress Payment Application ("Retention"), and the total amount of Retention shall not exceed five percent of

the Contract Amount. However, if the Special Provisions provide that Retention in excess of five Percent is required, the District shall withhold such percentage of each approved Progress Payment as Retention, and, in such event, the total amount of Retention shall not exceed such percentage of the Contract Amount, as is set forth in the Special Provisions. The District shall release the Retention to the Contractor ("Final Payment") as provided in Section 7.9 of these General Provisions. In the event of any dispute between the District and the Contractor, the District, as provided by Public Contract Code Section 7107, may withhold from the Final Payment an amount not exceeding one hundred and fifty percent of the amount in dispute.

Section 7.5 Ownership of Work. As security for partial, progress, or other payments, title to the portion of the Work for which such payments are made shall pass to the District at the time of payment. The Contractor shall retain title to all new materials and equipment until incorporated into the Work. However, all Work shall be at the Contractor's risk exclusively until final completion and acceptance of the Project by the District. To the extent that title has not previously been vested in the District by reason of any such payments, full title shall pass to the District upon delivery of the completed Work as specified in the Contract. Such transferred title shall in each case be good, free and clear from any and all security interests, liens, and other encumbrances. The Contractor promises and agrees that it shall not pledge, hypothecate or otherwise encumber the Work, materials or other items hereby subject to transfer of title in any manner that would result in any lien, security interest, charge, or claim upon or against said items. Any such transfer of title shall not imply acceptance by the District, shall not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility to strictly comply with the Contract, and shall not relieve Contractor of responsibility for, any loss of or damage to the Work, materials, or other items on the Project.

Section 7.6 Securities In Lieu of Retention. Upon request to the District, the Contractor shall be permitted, in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22300, to substitute securities in lieu of the Retention withheld by the District in order to ensure Contractor's performance under the Contract. Alternatively, the Contractor may request that the District pay any Retention earned by Contractor directly to an escrow agent who shall, as directed by the Contractor, invest the Retention in securities. Any escrow agreement shall be substantially in the form set forth in, and any securities invested or substituted in lieu of Retention shall be of the type permitted pursuant to, Public Contract Code Section 22300. The Contractor shall be responsible for all costs (including, without limitation, the District's costs) attributable to any investment or substitution of securities in lieu of Retention and/or any costs incurred in connection with establishing and maintaining an escrow account.

**Section 7.7 Deductions for Uncorrected Work.** The District may determine, in its sole discretion, not to correct all or any portion of the Work or Project that is damaged or that was not completed in accordance with the Contract and, in such event, if applicable, an equitable deduction from the Contract Amount shall be made on account of such damaged or incomplete work.

**Section 7.8 Other Withholdings.** In addition to the Retention, the District may withhold from the Final Payment or from amounts payable pursuant to any approved Progress Payment Application all amounts necessary to protect District from any loss or liability that has or might result from: (i) Liquidated Damages; (ii) the costs to the District of performing any obligation of Contractor related to the Work that Contractor has failed to timely perform or has performed inadequately; (iii) failure of Contractor to timely correct defective Work; (iv) any stop payment notice(s) related to the

Work; (v) reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount or prior to any scheduled completion date; (vi) unsatisfactory progress, execution or performance of the Work; (vii) unauthorized deviations from the Contract; (viii) failure of the Contractor to maintain or timely submit proper and sufficient documentation as required by the Contract or by the District during performance of the Work; (ix) erroneous or false estimates by the Contractor of the value of the Work performed; (x) expenses, losses or damages incurred by the District for which Contractor is liable pursuant to the Contract; (xi) damage caused by the Contractor or its Work to the Project or to the work of any other prime contractor or subcontractor performing work on the Project; and (xii) any other sums that the District is entitled to withhold or recover from Contractor pursuant to law or the Contract. The failure by the District to withhold any such amount from any payment, or from a particular payment, to Contractor shall not constitute a waiver of the District's right to such amount.

Section 7.9 Final Payment. The Inspector shall provide written certification to the District when, as determined by the Inspector, the Contractor has satisfactorily completed the Work and all other obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents. The Inspector shall indicate in the certificate, based on actual measurements, the whole amount and value of the Work accomplished by the Contractor and that all "punch list" items have been satisfactorily completed. The District shall thereafter inspect the Work and determine whether all of the Work has been completed in accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents and should be accepted by the District Board. Not sooner than thirty-five days, and not later than sixty days, after acceptance of the Work by the District Board, the District shall issue the Final Payment to the Contractor, subject to withholding of disputed or other amounts as permitted by applicable law and/or the Contract Documents. The District, within fifteen days after acceptance of the Work by the District Board, may cause a Notice of Completion for the Work to be filed in the office of the Ventura County Recorder.

Section 7.10 Waiver and Release. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract, as a condition precedent for each payment to the Contractor hereunder: (i) the Contractor must complete, sign and submit to the District a conditional waiver and release in accordance with, and in substantially the form set forth in, Civil Code Section 8132, for the full amount of the payment; (ii) the Contractor must complete, sign and submit to the District an unconditional waiver and release, in substantially the form set forth in Civil Code Section 8134, for all amounts previously paid to the Contractor and for which the Contractor has not already submitted an unconditional waiver; and (iii) a completed and signed unconditional waiver and release, in substantially the form set forth in Civil Code Section 8134, for each subcontractor, materials supplier and other entity that has been paid by the Contractor, but that has not already submitted an unconditional waiver and release for all such payment amounts. Upon completion of all of the Work, and issuance of final payment to Contractor in connection with the Project, the District may require that Contractor complete, sign and submit to the District an unconditional waiver and release upon final payment in accordance with, and in substantially the form set forth in, Civil Code Section 8138. In addition, the District may require that the Contractor submit to the District an affidavit to the effect that such releases account for all the labor and material used in connection with the Work for which a stop payment notice could be filed. In the event any subcontractor, materials supplier, or other entity or person refuses to provide a release in full, the Contractor may provide the District with a bond satisfactory to the District to indemnify the District against any stop payment notice that may be filed by such entity or person. If any stop payment notice remains unsatisfied after the District has made the Final Payment to the Contractor, the Contractor shall pay to the District all amounts, if any,

that the District may be compelled to pay in discharging such stop payment notice, together with the District's costs and expenses related thereto, including attorneys' fees and costs.

**Section 7.11 Claims for Extra Cost.** If the Contractor claims that instructions related to the Work resulted in costs to the Contractor that were not contemplated and are not included within the Contract Amount, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the District Representative within a reasonable time, but not in excess of five days after the receipt of such instructions. In the event of any such claim, except in an emergency in which life or property is endangered, the Contractor shall not commence execution of the portion of the Work that is affected by such claim unless and until directed to do so by the District. In the event the District Representative determines that any such claim is valid, the Contract Amount shall be adjusted as provided for a Change in the Work. The Contractor shall bear the risk, cost, and expense of any Change in the Work undertaken without prior approval of the District.

Section 7.12 Delay Damages. The Contractor shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or damages because any portion of the Project at any time has not progressed or is not sufficiently complete for Contractor to timely proceed or continue with any portion of the Work, except if and to the extent such delay is the result of an unreasonable act of the District not within the contemplation of the Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall not claim or be entitled to compensation for any such otherwise compensable delay in the event of a concurrent delay resulting from acts or omissions of the Contractor or its subcontractors or suppliers. In the event of a perceived delay, a condition precedent for any claim by Contractor shall be compliance with the notice requirements set forth in Section 5.6 of these General Provisions. If the Contractor fails to give timely notice of a delay in accordance with Section 5.6 of these General Provisions, the Contractor shall have no right or entitlement to any compensation or extension of time in connection with such delay.

# PART 8. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

**General Liability Insurance.** Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor must have in effect, and the Contractor must maintain in effect at all times as required by this Section, a policy of broad-form commercial general liability insurance ("General Liability Policy"), written on an "occurrence" basis, covering claims for bodily injury, including death, property damage, and consequential damages that may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the Contract or from actions taken in connection with the Work, whether such actions are taken by Contractor, by any subcontractor of Contractor, or any person directly or indirectly employed by any of them. Not as a limitation on the foregoing, the General Liability Policy must provide coverage for both the ongoing and completed operations of the Contractor, and for the indemnification obligations assumed by the Contractor pursuant to the Contract Documents. The General Liability Policy must provide coverage with minimum coverage limits as specified in the Special Provisions. If an aggregate limit applies to the General Liability Policy, not less than the minimum aggregate coverage limit specified in the Special Provisions must apply specifically to the Project and the Contract, by means of either endorsement or a separate "following form" excess policy. The Contractor must keep the General Liability Policy in full force and effect for at least one year after the date of Final Payment to the Contractor to ensure that coverage for products-completed operations remains in effect at least for such one-year period.

Section 8.2 Vehicle Liability Insurance. Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor must have in effect, and the Contractor must maintain in effect at all times prior to final completion and acceptance of the Work, a policy of vehicle liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis, providing coverage for all motor vehicles (whether owned, leased, rented, or borrowed) that are driven or used in connection with the Work ("Vehicle Liability Policy"). The Vehicle Liability Policy must, by separate endorsement, name the District as an additional insured and must include a standard waiver of the insurer's rights of subrogation against the District. The Vehicle Liability Policy must provide coverage with minimum coverage limits as specified in the Special Provisions. If an aggregate limit applies, not less than the minimum aggregate coverage limit specified in the Special Provisions must apply specifically to the Project and the Contract, by means of endorsement or separate "following form" excess policy.

**Section 8.3 Workers Compensation Insurance.** In accordance with Labor Code Sections 1860 and 1861, and concurrently with execution and delivery of the Contract, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the District the Certification Regarding Workers Compensation form included within the Contract Documents whereby the Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to secure workers' compensation insurance in compliance with Labor Code Section 3700 *et seq*. Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor must have in effect, and the Contractor must maintain in effect at all times prior to full and final completion of the Work, a policy of workers' compensation insurance in compliance with Section 3700 of the Labor Code and other applicable provisions of law ("Workers Compensation Policy"). Within seven days following receipt of the Notice of Award, the Contractor must provide to the District such Certificates of Insurance as evidence that the Contractor has such insurance coverage in effect.

### Section 8.4 Builder's All-Risk Insurance.

Subsection 8.4.1 General Requirement. If so specified in the Special Provisions, the Contractor must procure a policy of builder's all-risk insurance, written on a non-reporting, completed value basis, providing coverage in an amount not less than the greater of: (i) the full estimated replacement cost of the Project assuming the Work has been completed; or (ii) the Contract Amount ("Builder's All-Risk Policy"). The Builder's All-Risk Policy must apply, at a minimum, to: (i) completed Work and the Project as improved by the Work; (ii) Work in progress; (iii) temporary structures and improvements; (iv) materials, supplies and equipment stored on the Project Site; (v) materials, supplies and equipment stored at off-site locations or in transit; and (vi) operational and performance testing, commissioning, and start-up.

Subsection 8.4.2 All-Risk Coverage. The Builder's All-Risk Policy must cover: (i) losses arising from causes that include, without limitation, fires, windstorms, lightening, explosions, theft, earth movement, collapse, and water damage; (ii) costs associated with clean-up, demolition, repair or other correction of covered losses, including, without limitation, fees for necessary Architect/Consultant, engineering and other professional services; and (iii) all ensuing or consequential losses attributable to causes of loss excluded under the Builder's All-Risk Policy, including, without limitation, faulty design or workmanship. The Builder's All-Risk Policy must be endorsed for extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief, and theft, including theft of materials not then incorporated into the Work. Any exclusion of losses attributable to faulty design or workmanship shall not exceed the total costs the District would have incurred to repair or otherwise correct the fault if it had been discovered prior to the loss having occurred.

**Subsection 8.4.3 Earthquake and Flood Coverage.** The foregoing provisions of this Section 8.4 shall not be deemed or construed to require that the Builder's All-Risk Policy include earthquake and flood insurance coverage. However, the District may require that the Contractor obtain an endorsement to the Builder's All-Risk Policy to provide earthquake and/or flood insurance for the Project, in which event the District shall be responsible for the cost of the endorsement.

Subsection 8.4.4 Loss Payees and Additional Insureds. The Builder's All-Risk Policy must name or be endorsed to name the District and the Contractor as loss payees (or, if applicable, additional insureds), including, without limitation, for the purposes of any tax-exempt bond proceeds used to fund the Project, and the District shall for such purposes be deemed the owner of all work and materials on the Project Site or stored for use on the Project Site. The payment by the District of any Construction Progress Payments, in and of itself, shall not be deemed or construed to: (i) create an insurable interest for the District; or (ii) relieve the Contractor of responsibility it otherwise may have for losses arising from any direct physical loss, damage, or destruction incurred prior to final completion and acceptance of the Work.

**Section 8.5 Contractor Insurance is Primary.** The coverages provided by each of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, and, if applicable, the Builder's All-Risk Policy shall be primary and not contributing with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering the District and/or any of the District Agents.

Section 8.6 Insurer Standards. Each of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy and, if applicable, the Builder's All-Risk Policy must be issued by an insurer that is licensed to do business in this State and that has, as determined by the A.M. Best Company, a "Financial Strength Rating" of not less than "A-" (A minus), a "Ratings Outlook," if assigned, of either stable or positive, and a "Financial Size Category" of not less than IX. If a "Ratings Outlook" has been assigned to any such insurer that is not either stable or positive, the District may consider the insurer's Rating's Outlook and all other relevant factors in determining whether the insurer is satisfactory, and, if the District reasonably determines that there may be a significant risk in accepting any insurance policy issued or to be issued by such insurer, then, upon request of the District, the Contractor must obtain such insurance policy through another insurer that satisfies the standards set forth in this Section.

**Section 8.7 Additional Insureds.** The General Liability Policy and the Vehicle Liability Policy each must name or be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured. Each endorsement specifying any additional insured must be ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or an equivalent endorsement reasonably acceptable to the District. Each additional insured endorsement shall include a "primary insurance clause" stating to the effect that: "The insurance afforded by this policy for the benefit of the additional insureds shall be primary insurance, and any insurance maintained by the additional insureds shall be excess and non-contributory with the insurance provided hereunder." The coverage provided to the additional insureds must be at least as broad as the coverage provided to the Contractor and may not contain any additional exclusionary language or limitations applicable only to the additional insureds.

**Section 8.8** Cross-Liability and Waivers of Subrogation. Each of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, and, if applicable, the Builder's All-Risk Policy must: (i) be endorsed

with a cross-liability endorsement (separation of insureds) and include a waiver of the insurer's rights of subrogation against each person or entity that is an additional insured or loss payee. The Workers Compensation Policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of the insurer's rights of subrogation against the District. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective with respect to each applicable person or entity regardless of whether the person or entity: (i) has a right to indemnification; (ii) has an obligation to indemnify any other person or entity; (iii) paid any premium for the applicable insurance; or (iv) has an insurable interest in any property. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District, in accordance with Section 8.15 of these General Provisions, with respect to any and all subrogation claims arising from any of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable), or the Workers Compensation Policy.

Section 8.9 **Premiums, Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.** Except as provided in Subsection 8.4.3 of these General Provisions, the Contractor shall be solely responsible and liable for paying any and all premiums and other costs incurred in obtaining and maintaining the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable), and the Workers Compensation Policy, including, without limitation, any and all renewal premiums. Subject to written approval by the District, which the District may grant or withhold in its reasonable discretion, one or more of such insurance policies may be subject to a deductible or self-insured retention. Upon reasonable request of the District, the Contractor shall either: (i) cause any such deductible or selfinsured retention to be reduced or eliminated; or (ii) obtain and provide to the District a bond or bonds guaranteeing payment of the deductible or self-insured retention, together with any losses and related investigations, claims, administrative and legal costs and expenses. Each Certificate of Insurance (defined in Section 8.10 of these General Provisions) that evidences any such insurance policy must specify any and all deductibles applicable to the policy. The Contractor shall be solely responsible and liable for any and all such deductibles and self-insured retentions. However, each insurance policy subject to any deductible or self-insured retention shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, for payment or satisfaction of the deductible or self-insured retention by the District in the event of Contractor's insolvency or inability to otherwise pay or satisfy the deductible or self-insured retention. Contractor's indemnification and other obligations pursuant to Section 8.15 of these General Provisions shall apply with respect to any and all claims arising from such premiums, deductibles and/or self-insured retentions.

**Section 8.10 Evidence of Coverage.** Within seven days following receipt of the Notice of Award, the Contractor must provide to the District, for each of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable), and the Workers Compensation Policy, a certificate of insurance evidencing that such insurance is in effect (each a "Certificate of Insurance"), together with any and all endorsements to such policies required pursuant to this Part 8 of these General Provisions. Each Certificate of Insurance must: (i) be executed by a duly-authorized officer, agent or other representative of the insurer; (ii) include an original handwritten signature of the insurer's representative, not a stamped or printed signature; and (iii) must certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations to which the insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance. The Contractor must provide to the District an updated Certificate of Insurance for each renewal of any such insurance policy not less than thirty days prior to any expiration of the policy. Each renewal and replacement of any such policy that, as permitted by this Part 8 of these General Provisions, is written on a "claims made" basis must have a retroactive date that is prior to the date the Contractor was initially required to have such

insurance policy in effect pursuant to this Part 8. If any Certificate of Insurance associated with any of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable), or the Workers Compensation Policy sets forth language to the effect that it "does not amend, extend or alter the coverage" of the insurance policy, or that the coverage available pursuant to the policy "is subject to all of the terms, exclusions, and conditions of the policy," then, notwithstanding Section 8.12 of these General Provisions, the Contractor, prior to commencing the Work, must provide to the District a certified copy of such insurance policy and all associated endorsements, riders, *et cetera*.

Section 8.11 Mandatory Notice from Insurer of Change in Coverage. Each of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable), and Workers Compensation Policy, and each associated Certificate of Insurance, must require or be endorsed to require that the insurer notify the District not less than thirty days prior to any cancellation, termination, reduction in coverage, or expiration without renewal of such policy, or, in the case of any cancellation for non-payment of premium, not less than ten days prior to cancellation. Language in any such insurance policy or Certificate of Insurance to the effect that the insurer shall "endeavor" to provide such notice, or to the effect "that failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation and liability upon the company, its agents or representatives," shall not be acceptable.

Section 8.12 District Review and Approval of Insurance Policies. Within ten days of a request from the District, the Contractor must provide to the District a certified copy of any of the General Liability Policy, the Vehicle Liability Policy, the Builder's All-Risk Policy (if applicable) and/or the Workers Compensation Policy as requested by the District, together with any and all associated Certificates of Insurance, endorsements, riders, et cetera. Each of such insurance policies and associated other documents shall be subject to review and approval by the District in regard to compliance with the requirements of this Part 8 of these General Provisions. No such review by the District, and no failure by the District to undertake any such review, shall be deemed or construed to be an assumption of liability by the District or to constitute a waiver of any non-compliance by the Contractor with the requirements of this Part 8 of these General Provisions.

Section 8.13 Subcontractor Insurance. The Contractor must require in its subcontracts applicable to the Work that each subcontractor obtain and maintain insurance coverage in compliance with all of the preceding requirements of this Part 8 of these General Provisions, except that: (i) no subcontractor need carry a Builder's All-Risk Policy; and (ii) coverage limits for subcontractor General Liability Policy and Vehicle Liability Policy shall be as specified in the Special Provisions. The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that any and all subcontractors have such insurance in effect and for providing all documentation of the subcontractors' insurance coverage (i.e., copies of insurance policies and Certificates of Insurance) to the District within the time(s) required by this Part 8 of these General Provisions. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District, in accordance with Section 8.15 of these General Provisions, with respect to any and all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses, and other liabilities arising from the failure of any subcontractor to have in effect the insurance required pursuant to this Part 8 of these General Provisions.

**Section 8.14 Waiver of Claims.** Each of the District and the Contractor hereby waives any and all rights it may have against the other pursuant to the Contract to the extent the waiving party is compensated for claims, damages or other liabilities by any of the insurance required pursuant to this Part 8 of these General Provisions. The Contractor shall require that in its subcontracts applicable to the

Work that each subcontractor waive any and all rights it may have against the District in connection with the Work to the extent the subcontractor is compensated for claims, damages or other liabilities by any of the insurance required pursuant to this Part 8 of these General Provisions. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District, in accordance with Section 8.15 of these General Provisions, with respect to any and all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses, and other liabilities arising from the failure of any subcontractor to provide the waiver as required pursuant to this Section.

*Indemnification.* The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the Section 8.15 District against and from any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, losses, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees), and other liabilities of whatever nature that arise from or in connection with the performance of the Contract or of the Work by Contractor or its officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors. The Contractor shall reimburse the District for all damages, expenses and losses incurred by the District as a consequence of any claim, demand, action or other proceeding that is within the scope of the foregoing provision of this Section, including, without limitation, any and all disputes between Contractor and any of its subcontractors. However, the Contractor shall not be liable or responsible pursuant to this Section to the extent any claim, demand, action, damage, loss, cost, expense or other liability is attributable to the active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District or any District Agent, in which event the District and the Contractor shall be liable on a comparative basis. The requirements of this Section shall be in addition to any other indemnification provisions contained in the Contract Documents and shall survive termination of the Contract. Any and all obligations set forth in the Contract Documents requiring that the Contractor indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District (including, without limitation, this Section) shall be deemed and construed as an obligation to indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District, the District Agents, and each of them.

**Section 8.16 Subcontractor Indemnification.** The Contractor shall require that in its subcontracts applicable to the Work that each subcontractor indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District in connection with the Work to the extent provided in Section 8.15 of these General Provisions. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold-harmless the District, in accordance with Section 8.15 of these General Provisions, with respect to any failure of any subcontractor to indemnify, defend, and hold-harmless the District as required pursuant to this Section.

# PART 9. BOND REQUIREMENTS.

Section 9.1 Payment Bond. Concurrent with execution and delivery of the Contract, the Contractor must deliver to the District a payment bond in the form included in the Contract Documents, which shall have been duly executed by the Contractor and a Qualified Surety (defined in Section 9.3 of these General Provisions). The payment bond must have a penal sum equal to one hundred percent of the Contract Amount, and shall be exclusive of any obligation under the performance bond required pursuant to Section 9.2 of these General Provisions. The District shall not be required to issue any payment whatsoever to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract unless and until the District has received and approved such payment bond.

**Section 9.2 Performance Bond.** Concurrent with execution and delivery of the Contract, the Contractor shall deliver to the District a performance bond in the form included in the Contract

Documents, which shall have been duly executed by the Contractor and a Qualified Surety. The performance bond must have a penal sum equal to one hundred percent of the Contract Amount, and shall be exclusive of any obligation under the payment bond required pursuant to Section 9.1 of these General Provisions. The District shall not be required to issue any payment whatsoever to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract unless and until the District has received and approved such performance bond.

Section 9.3 **Surety Qualifications.** The payment and performance bonds required pursuant to Sections 9.1 and 9.2, respectively, of these General Provisions each must have been executed and issued by a surety that satisfies the requirements of this Section. The surety must be an "admitted surety insurer" as defined in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120. In order to ensure that the surety is an "admitted surety insurer," the Bidder or Contractor must attach to such bonds either of the following documents as required by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.311: (i) a copy of information printed from the website of the California Department of Insurance confirming that the surety is an admitted surety insurer; or (ii) a certificate from the Ventura County Clerk confirming that the surety is an admitted surety insurer. The surety that issues the performance bond must have a current A.M. Best Company "financial strength rating" of not less than "A-" and a "financial size category" of not less than "VIII." A surety that meets the requirements of this Section shall be deemed to be a "Qualified Surety" for purposes of the Contract. If either or both of the payment bond or performance bond submitted by the Contractor was not executed and issued by a Qualified Surety, the Contractor, within forty-eight hours of notice from the District Representative and prior to commencing the Work, must submit a replacement bond or bonds that satisfy the requirements of this Section, and if the Contractor fails to submit such replacement bond(s), the Contractor shall be deemed in material breach of the Contract. The foregoing requirement to provide a replacement payment or performance bond shall also be applicable in the event the surety, during the course of construction of the Project, loses its status as an "admitted surety insurer" as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120.

**Section 9.4** Increase in Bond Penal Sum. In the event the Contract Amount is increased in accordance with the Contract, the Contractor, upon request of the District, shall promptly cause the amount of the payment and performance bonds to be correspondingly increased and shall promptly deliver satisfactory evidence thereof to the District. If the Contractor fails to provide to the District any bond required pursuant to the Contract, the District, in its sole discretion, may terminate the Contract for cause.

**Section 9.5 Sufficiency of Bonds.** If, in the reasonable opinion of the District, either or both of the payment bond or performance bond required pursuant to this Part 9 of these General Provisions, or the surety issuing either or both of such bonds, is or becomes insufficient or unsatisfactory, the Contractor shall renew or replace such bond within forty-eight hours of notice from the District Representative, and any failure by the Contractor to do so shall be deemed a material breach of the Contract.

### PART 10. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION.

Section 10.1 Suspension of Work by District. The District, in its sole discretion, may at any time suspend performance of the Work and/or the Project by giving written notice to Contractor, and the suspension shall be effective upon receipt of such notice by the Contractor. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall immediately commence the process of suspending the Work, making safe any work in progress but otherwise taking steps to cease further progress on the Project. The District, consistent with the provisions of the Contract, shall pay the Contractor for all Work adequately performed up to the effective date of such suspension and for work reasonably required to eliminate safety hazards. Contractor shall resume its Work on the Project within twenty calendar days following written notice from the District to further proceed with Work on the Project.

Section 10.2 Termination for Convenience. The District, in its sole discretion, and without need for cause, may at any time terminate the Contract, or any portion thereof, by giving written notice to Contractor, and such termination shall be effective upon receipt of such notice by the Contractor. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall immediately commence the process of terminating the Work, making safe any work in progress but otherwise taking reasonable steps to cease further progress on the Project. The District, consistent with the provisions of the Contract, shall pay Contractor for all Work adequately performed up to the effective date of the termination for convenience as for work reasonably required to eliminate safety hazards. In the event of a termination for convenience, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any profits, overhead or general conditions costs for any portion of the Work that was not performed prior to termination or to compensation for costs related to discontinuing the Work. Notwithstanding a termination pursuant to this Section, the Contractor and its surety shall continue to be responsible and liable, in accordance with the Contract Documents and applicable law for any and all defects in quality, damage to property, injury to any person, and other matters arising from the Work performed prior to the termination.

# Section 10.3 Termination for Cause.

**Subsection 10.3.1 Events of Default.** Each of the following events shall be deemed a default by the Contractor of its obligations pursuant to the Contract (each an "Event of Default"):

- (i) Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of Contractor's insolvency;
- (ii) as reasonably determined by the District, the Contractor refuses or fails to provide a sufficient number of properly skilled workmen or the proper materials or supplies as are necessary for timely and/or proper completion of the Work;
- (iii) Contractor fails to promptly pay subcontractors for material or labor;
- (iv) Contractor fails to comply with any laws, ordinances, or instructions of the District applicable to the District; and
- (v) Contractor or its subcontractors otherwise fail to comply with any material provision of the Contract.

Subsection 10.3.2 Opportunity to Cure. If an Event of Default occurs, the District may serve notice on the Contractor and its surety(ies) describing the unsatisfactory condition or violation that constitutes a default by the Contractor ("Notice of Default"). The Contractor shall have forty-eight hours after service of any such Notice of Default to cure the Event of Default specified in the Notice of Default or to make arrangements satisfactory to the District for cure of the Event of Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of an Event of Default pursuant to clause (i) of Subsection 10.3.1 of these General Provisions, the Contractor shall have thirty days to cure or make arrangements satisfactory to the District for cure of the Event of Default.

**Subsection 10.3.3 District Remedies for Failure to Cure.** Upon failure of the Contractor to cure or make satisfactory arrangements for cure of an Event of Default in accordance with Subsection 10.3.2 of these General Provisions, the District may, at its option: (i) take such action as, in the District's opinion, is necessary to correct or cure the Event of Default and deduct the cost thereof from any amounts due or to become due to Contractor pursuant to the Contract; (ii) proceed to terminate the Contract, or any portion thereof; or (iii) take such other action as is permitted by the Contract or applicable law. In the event the District elects to terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, the District shall schedule and conduct a hearing on the matter, and the Contractor shall be permitted to attend and present evidence at such hearing to support a determination by the District that it should not terminate the Contract. The hearing shall be conducted by the District Board, which shall render a final decision. Alternatively, such hearing may be conducted by the District's Assistant Superintendent of Business Services or his designee, who shall make a recommendation to the District Board. Unless specified otherwise therein, a decision by the District Board shall be effective immediately. Notwithstanding a termination pursuant to this Section, the Contractor and its surety shall continue to be responsible and liable, in accordance with the Contract Documents and applicable law for any and all defects in quality, damage to property, injury to any person, and other matters arising from the Work performed prior to the termination.

Subsection 10.3.4 Effect of Termination for Cause. In the event of any termination for cause pursuant to this Section 10.3, the District shall be entitled to withhold and retain from any payment due to the Contractor all amounts necessary to offset any costs, expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), losses and/or damages incurred by the District as a result of the termination for cause. If the remaining amounts potentially payable to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract are insufficient to offset such costs, expenses, losses and/or damages, the Contractor and/or its performance bond surety shall reimburse the District for the uncompensated balance of such costs, expenses, losses and/or damages, including, without limitation, any uncompensated costs to complete the Work. The District's rights pursuant to the Contract are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights or remedies available to the District in the event of a termination for cause. In addition, the following provisions shall also apply in the event of any termination for cause pursuant to this Section 10.3:

- (i) The Contractor shall not be entitled to further compensation until satisfactory completion and acceptance by the District of all of the Work.
- (ii) The District shall give written notice of a termination pursuant to this Section 10.3 to both the Contractor and the Contractor's performance-bond surety. The surety shall thereafter have the right to take over and perform the Contract, provided, however, that, if the surety does not,

within seven calendar days after service of the notice of termination, notify the District that the surety intends to take over and perform the Contract, or if the surety does not commence performance of the Contract within fifteen days after providing such notice to the District, the District may take over and complete the Work by any means the District may deem appropriate, for the account of and at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor and its surety shall be liable to the District for costs thereby incurred by the District in excess of any remaining portion of the Contract Amount that otherwise would be payable to the Contractor.

- (iii) In the event the District takes over the Work, the District may, without liability for doing so: (1) take possession of the Work and the Project Site; (2) take possession of all materials, tools, equipment and appliances located at the Project Site and use them in connection with completion of the Project; (3) procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may determine appropriate, services required to complete the Work; (4) require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished documents, data, diagrams, drawings, materials or other matter prepared or built by Contractor in connection with its performance of the Contract; and (5) complete the affected portion(s) of the Project by whatever means and methods the District may deem to be in its best interests, including, but not limited to, calling upon Contractor's surety to complete the Work or to issue payment(s) to the District or its replacement contractor(s).
- (iv) In the event the District takes over and satisfactorily completes the Work, if the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount exceeds the cost to the District of satisfactorily completing the Work, including, without limitation, compensation for any additional Architect/Consultant, managerial or administrative services needed as a result of the Contractor's default, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor after satisfactory completion and acceptance of the Work by the District less any amounts attributable to any stop payment notices and amounts withheld by the District in accordance with applicable law or the Contract. If the cost to the District of satisfactorily completing the Work is greater than the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount, the Contractor, or its surety, shall pay the difference to the District within thirty days of notice from the District. In addition, the District may pursue any other recourse or remedies against the Contractor and/or its surety, which are available pursuant to law or the Contract.

Section 10.4 **Termination By Contractor.** Subject to the other provisions of this Section, the Contractor may stop the Work or initiate termination of the Contract by giving written notice to the District Representative if, through no fault of the Contractor or its employees, subcontractors or suppliers: (i) all work on the Project ceases for a period exceeding thirty days pursuant to an order or direction of any court or government entity, other than the District, with jurisdiction over any portion of the Project; (ii) the District Representative arbitrarily fails, within thirty days of receipt from Contractor of a Progress Payment Application, to issue a certificate for payment for any undisputed amount(s) due to Contractor; or (iii) the District fails, within sixty days of receipt from the District Representative of a certificate of payment therefor, to pay to the Contractor any undisputed amount specified in such certificate of payment. Upon receipt of any such notice from the Contractor, the District shall have fifteen days to cure or make other arrangements for cure of the matter as are acceptable to the Contractor. If the District fails within the required time period to cure or make such acceptable arrangements for cure of the matter, the Contractor may stop the Work or terminate the Contract by giving additional written notice to the District, which notice shall be effective immediately upon receipt by the District. In the event the Contractor stops the Work or terminates the Contract pursuant to

either subdivision (ii) or (iii) of the first sentence of this Section, the District shall be liable to the Contractor for any losses thereby reasonably incurred by the Contractor; provided that the Contractor shall not be entitled to recover any lost or foregone profits attributable to the portions of the Work not satisfactorily completed by the Contractor prior to stoppage of the Work or termination of the Contract.

## PART 11. LAWS AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS.

Section 11.1 Liability for Non-Compliance with Laws. The Contractor at all times during the execution of the Work shall be and shall remain fully informed of all local, State and federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or other requirements that may in any manner affect those engaged or employed to perform any of the Work or the materials used in performing the Work, or that may in any way affect the performance of the Work. In addition, the Contractor at all times during the execution of the Work shall be and shall remain fully informed of all rules, regulations, orders, and other requirements of any public or private entity with jurisdiction over the Work. In performing the Work, the Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required pursuant to, all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and other requirements applicable to the Work as drawn and specified. The Contractor shall be liable for any violation of a law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or other requirement in connection with performance of the Work. If the Contractor observes that the drawings and specifications in any respect do not conform with any applicable law, ordinance, rule, regulation or other requirement, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District Representative in writing. The Contractor shall bear all liability and costs, including any fines, arising from performance of any Work that the Contractor knew or reasonably should have known was contrary to any applicable law, ordinance, rule, regulation or other requirement, and the Contractor failed to notify the District Representative of the same a sufficient time in advance of performing the Work to permit the District to investigate and resolve the discrepancy.

Section 11.2 Applicable Regulations. The performance of the Work, including all construction and the materials and equipment used or incorporated into the Work, shall, not as a limitation, conform to all applicable requirements of the regulatory provisions specified in this Section. Each of such specified regulatory provisions, as those may be amended from time to time, is hereby incorporated as an operative part of the Plans and Specifications, and Contractor shall maintain a current copy of each at the Project Site. In the event of any conflict between the requirements of the various specified regulatory provisions, or in the event of any conflict between the requirements of the specified regulatory provisions and the requirements of any other applicable provision of law, the most authoritative requirements shall govern and nothing in the Contract Documents shall be construed to permit work that does not conform with such requirements. The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional compensation for any Changes in the Work necessary to ensure compliance with the requirements of the specified regulatory provisions, and the cost of any such Changes in the Work shall be deemed to be encompassed within the Contract Amount. The specified regulations are as follows:

- (i) Title 8 California Code of Regulations (Industrial Relations), Chapter 4 (Division of Industrial Safety), Subchapter 4 (Construction Safety Orders), commencing with Section 1500.
- (ii) Title 19 California Code of Regulations (Public Safety), Division 1 (State Fire Marshal), commencing with Section 1.00.

- (iii) Title 21 California Code of Regulations (Public Works), Division 1 (Department of General Services), Chapter 1 (Office of the State Architect/Consultant), Subchapter 1 (Safety of Construction of Public Schools), commencing with Section 1.
- (iv) Title 24 California Code of Regulations (the California Building Standards Code).

**Section 11.3 Provisions Deemed Inserted.** Each and every provision or clause required by law to be inserted in the Contract are hereby deemed to have been inserted, and the Contract shall be interpreted and enforced as though such provisions and clauses are expressly set forth herein. If, through mistake or otherwise, any required provision is not inserted or is not correctly inserted, then upon written request of either the District or the Contractor, the Contract shall be amended to make the insertion or correction. Any and all references in the Contract to laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or other requirements shall be deemed and construed to include all amendments, replacements and enactments thereto that are in effect as of the date of the Contract, as well as any later amendments thereto that do not materially or substantially alter the rights or obligations of the Parties.

**Section 11.4 Equal Opportunity Employer.** The Contractor represents and warrants that it is an equal opportunity employer and that it shall not, in connection with the Work, discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of any applicable federal, State, or local law, including, without limitation, on the basis of such person's race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or age. Such policy of non-discrimination shall apply to all activities related to recruitment advertising, recruitment, initial employment, promotion, demotion, transfer, and layoff or termination.

**Section 11.5 DVBE Participation.** If the Special Provisions provide that the Contractor must comply with the provisions of this Section, then the Contractor must, as a condition to Final Payment, complete, execute, and submit to the District the "Certification Regarding DVBE Participation" form included in the Required Contract Forms.

Section 11.6 Tobacco-Free Facility. All properties and facilities owned, leased or operated by the District, including the Project, are tobacco-free work places. It is strictly forbidden while on or in any District-controlled property or facility, including the Project, to smoke, chew, or otherwise use tobacco products. Any employee of the Contractor or its subcontractors found in violation of these requirements will be required to permanently leave District premises and the Contractor shall not thereafter re-employ such person on the Project or permit such person on the Project Site. The Contractor shall include this provision in all contracts with subcontractors and others performing any of the Work or providing labor, materials or services related to the Work, and each shall provide a copy of this provision to its employees on the Project.

Section 11.7 Drug-Free Facility. All properties and facilities owned, leased or operated by the District, including the Project, are drug-free work places. It is strictly forbidden while on or in any District-controlled property or facility to: (i) engage in the unlawful manufacture, dispensation, possession or use, including being under the influence, of any controlled substance; (ii) possess or use any alcoholic beverage; or (iii) use any illegal substance which may cause significant impairment of normal abilities. Any employee of the Contractor or its subcontractors found in violation of these requirements will be required to permanently leave District premises and the Contractor shall not

thereafter re-employ such person on the Project or permit such person on the Project Site. The Contractor shall include this provision in all contracts with subcontractors and others performing any of the Work or providing labor, materials or services related to the Work, and each, as well as the Contractor, shall provide a copy of this provision to its employees on the Project.

Section 11.8 **Compliance with Labor Code Requirements.** The Project is a "public works project" as defined in Section 1720 of the California Labor Code ("Labor Code") and, therefore, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code is applicable to the Project. The Contractor must be, and shall be deemed and construed to be, aware of and understand the requirements of Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., and 1770 et seq., and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 16000 et seq. (collectively, "Labor Laws") which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other acts in connection with public works projects. The Contractor acknowledges that the Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. In any event, the Contractor, at no additional cost to the District, must comply with any and all applicable Labor Law requirements, including, without limitation, requirements for payment of Prevailing Wages, maintenance, inspection and submittal of payroll records, notice and posting requirements, et cetera. The Contractor must ensure that any and all subcontractors working under the Contractor comply with the Labor Laws and other public works requirements. The Contractor, at no additional cost to the District, must cooperate with the DIR, and the District in connection with Labor Law compliance matters. A contractor or subcontractor that has been debarred in accordance with the Labor Code, including, without limitation, pursuant to Sections 1777.1 or 1777.7, is not eligible to Bid on, perform, or contract to perform any portion of the Work. Wage rates for the Work shall be in accordance with the general prevailing rates of per-diem wages determined by the Director of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1770. Wage rates shall conform to those on file at the District's principal office, which are available for review upon request, and posted at the Project Site. The District will withhold payment to the Contractor necessary to satisfy civil wage and penalty assessment issued by the Labor Commissioner. The following Labor Code sections are by this reference incorporated into and are a fully operative part of the Contract, and Contractor shall be solely responsible for compliance therewith:

- (i) Section 1735: Anti-Discrimination Requirements;
- (ii) Section 1775: Penalty for Prevailing Wage Rate Violations;
- (iii) Section 1776: Payroll Records;
- (iv) Sections 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777.7: Apprenticeship Requirements;
- (v) Sections 1810 through 1812: Working Hour Restrictions;
- (vi) Sections 1813 and 1814: Penalty for Failure to Pay Overtime; and
- (vii) Section 1815: Overtime Pay.

**Section 11.9 Requirements for Payroll Records.** The Contractor must comply with all applicable provisions of Labor Code Section 1776, which relates to preparing and maintaining accurate payroll records, and submitting or making such payroll records available for review and copying by the District, the DIR's Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship Standards. The payroll records must be certified, maintained at the principal offices of the Contractor, and submitted or made available as required by Labor Code Section 1776. The Contractor must inform the District of the location at which the payroll records are located, including the street address, city and county, and must, within five working days, provide a notice of any change of location and address. If the Contractor or any subcontractor fails to timely comply with requests for certified payroll records, it

shall forfeit, as a penalty to the District, \$100 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict compliance is effectuated, and, in addition to penalties as provided by law, may be subject to debarment pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.1. Timely provision by the Contractor of certified payroll records also shall be a condition precedent to the District's obligation to make any subsequent progress, final, Retention, or other payments to the Contractor pursuant to the Contract.

Section 11.10 Registration with DIR. On and after March 1, 2015, no contractor or subcontractor may submit a Bid for any work on a public works project, and on and after April 1, 2015, no contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for work on a public works project or perform any work on a public works project, unless the contractor or subcontractor is then-currently registered with the DIR and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. If applicable to the Contract, then, prior to entering into the Contract, the District will confirm that the Contractor is duly registered with the DIR. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, if at any time during the performance of the Work, the Contractor or any of its subcontractors is not duly registered pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 (including, without limitation, if the DIR revokes the registration), the District may cancel the Contract and/or replace the Contractor or subcontractor with a contractor or subcontractor that is duly registered pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5.

Section 11.11 Penalties for Violations of Labor Laws. In accordance with Section 1775 of the Labor Code, the Contractor shall forfeit, as a penalty to the District, not more than \$200 and, subject to limited exceptions, not less than certain amounts specified by law, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than prevailing wage rates as determined by the director of the DIR. The Contractor shall pay to each worker the difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to the worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which the worker was paid less than the applicable prevailing wage rates.

Section 11.12 Assignment of Anti-Trust Claims. In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 7103.5, the Contractor, in entering into the Contract, hereby offers and agrees to assign to the District all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action Contractor may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700, of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code) arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the Contract. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the Parties.

### PART 12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

**Section 12.1 Governing Law and Venue.** The Contract and all rights and obligations arising out of it shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State. Any arbitration, litigation or other proceeding arising out of the Contract shall be commenced and conducted only in the County of Ventura, California.

**Section 12.2 Mediation and Arbitration.** The provisions of Part 3, Chapter 1, Article 1.5 (commencing with Section 20104) of the Public Contract Code ("Dispute Resolution Provisions") shall apply to all public works claims of \$375,000 or less arising or resulting from the Contract. The Dispute

Resolution Provisions are incorporated herein by this reference. The Dispute Resolution Provisions require that any such claim be in writing and supported by adequate documentation of the basis for the claim. The District shall respond to any such claim as required pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Provisions, and the Parties may be required to mediate and arbitrate the claim(s).

**Section 12.3 Costs and Expenses.** The Parties shall, initially, equally bear the cost of any arbitration, litigation or other proceeding arising from or related to the Work or the Contract; however, the prevailing party in any such proceeding shall be entitled to recover such initial costs, in addition to other costs as specified herein, as an item of damage and/or recoverable cost.

**Section 12.4 Continuation of Work.** Notwithstanding anything in the Contract Documents to the contrary, in the event of any dispute between the District and the Contractor, or any dispute between the Contractor and any subcontractor or other third party, the Contractor shall not be permitted to cease performance of the Work, but the Contractor shall have the right to pursue all other remedies permitted pursuant to the Contract and applicable law. A violation of this provision by the Contractor shall constitute a material breach of the Contract.